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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (the “Company”] and its subsidiaries
(fogether the “Group”), | present to you the annual results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong and the telephone and facsimile numbers of the

Company are (852) 2268 8248 and (852) 2548 5575.

RESULTS

The Company hereby announces its annual results for the year ended
31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Year” or "FY23”). For the Reporting
Year, the Group's tumnover increased by approximately (“approx.”) 3%
to approx. HK$146 million, compared with approx. HK$ 142 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the "FY22" or “Corresponding
Year”).

Gross profit margin for the Reporting Year was approx. 41% compared
to approx. 37% in the Corresponding Year. Overall, loss affributable to
owners of the Company was approx. HK$ 135 million compared with
HK$54 million in the Corresponding Year. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023 (FY22: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, revenue increased due fo the net effect of (1)
the increase in revenue from the investment in financial instrument
segment from loss of approx. HK$1 million in FY22 to gain of approx.
HK$6 million in the Reporting Year; (2) the increase in revenue from the
Chinese health product segment from approx. HK$ 128 million in FY22
to approx. HK$ 130 million in the Reporting Year; and (3] the decrease
in revenue from the money lending segment from approx. HK$ 15 million
in FY22 to approx. HK$ 11 million in the Reporting Year.

The Group recorded an increase in loss for the year ended 31
December 2023 as compared fo the year ended 31 December 2022.
The increase in loss was mainly due to an increase in the impairment
loss recognised during the year in respect of loan receivables from
APProx. HK$25 million in FY22 to Approx. HK$107 million in FY23.

Chinese Health Products

Chinese health products business engaged in the sales of Chinese and
other pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and dried
seafood products to wholesaler and retailer. Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung
Drugs Company Llimited, one of our subsidiaries, engages in the
business of trading and retail of “Sum Yung” () and dried seafood
products since 1977 and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong” (F3£1T)
is highly recognised in Hong Kong and Southern Mainland China.

During the Reporting Year, this segment had contributed revenue of
approx. HK$ 130 million [FY22: HK$128 million) and segment profit of
approx. HK$3 million (FY22: HK$2 million). As at 31 December 2023,
there were 10 (31 December 2022: 10) retail shops of Nam Pei
Hong.

The increase in revenue contributed by the Chinese Health Products
during the Reporting Year was mainly atiributable by the Consumption
Vouchers Scheme launched by the Hong Kong Government and the
ease of travel resrictions in early 2023 which stimulate spendings from
the customers.
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Money Lending

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans amounting to approx. HK$ 11
million (FY22: HK$15 million), and reported a segment loss (before
taxation) of approx. HK$116 million (FY22: HK$30 million). The
decrease in interest income was mainly because of the increase in loan
receivables being classified fo stage 3 (creditimpaired) in the Reporting
Year ceased fo generate inferest income during the Reporting Year. The
increase in segment loss was mainly attributable to an approx. HK$82
million increase in allowance for ECL provided during FY23. The
increase in allowance for ECL was mainly due to the fact that loan
receivables with aggregate principal of HK$124 million were re-
classified to stage 3 (creditimpaired), which usually generates a high
allowance for ECL, during the year.

During FY23, the Group granted 1 new loan with principal amount of
approx. HK$S million to 1 customer and extended the final repayment
date of 1 loan to 1 customer with principal amount of approx. HK$7
million. The Group’s customers made drawings in the aggregate
principal amount of approx. HK$13 million from the existing and new
loans and repaid approx. HK$ 16 million to the Group.

At 31 December 2023, eleven (2022: eleven] loans remained
outstanding, in which (i) three (2022: seven) loan receivables with the
aggregate gross balance of approx. HK$17 million (2022: HK$118
million] were classified under stage 1 [initial recognition), (i) nil (2022:
one] loan receivable with nil (2022: HK$33 million) gross balance was
classified under stage 2 [significant increase in credit risk) and (iii) eight
(2022: three) loan receivables with the aggregate gross balance of
approx. HK$294 million (2022: HK$ 170 million] were classified under
stage 3 [creditimpaired). During the year ended 31 December 2023,
one loan receivable with gross balance of approx. HK$3 1 million were
reclassified from stage 2 (significant increase in credit risk) fo sfage 3
(creditimpaired) as the customer failed to setile the principal and inferest
in the Reporting Year. In addition, four loan receivables with the
aggregate gross balance of approx. HK$96 million were reclassified
from stage 1 [initial recognition) to stage 3 (creditimpaired) as the
customers failed fo seftle the principals and inferests in the Reportfing
Year.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

At the end of the Reporting Year, the Directors performed an impairment
assessment on the Group’s loan receivables with reference to a
valuation prepared by an independent professional valuer. The valuation
measured impairment on loan receivables using the “expected credit
loss model” established by Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
Financial Instruments.

Based on the valuation, a fofal of approx. HK$294 million [2022:
HK$ 187 million) allowance for ECL on loan receivables was made, an
approx. HK$ 107 million (2022: HK$25 million) increase compared to
that for FY22. Of the total allowance for ECL, approx. HK$1 million
(2022: HK$5 million) was recognised for loan receivables classified
under stage 1 (initial recognition), nil (2022: HK$12 million) was
recognised for loan receivables clarified under stage 2 [significant
increase in credit risk] and approx. HK$293 million (2022: HK$170
million) was recognised for loan receivables classified under stage 3
(creditimpaired).

At 31 December 2023, the Group's loan receivables, together with
accrued interest receivables (after accumulated allowance for ECL),
amounted to approx. HK$17 million (31 December 2022: approx.
HK$ 134 million).

Further information on the Group's money lending business, including (i)
business model, i) internal confrol system, [iii) basis of defermining the
allowance for ECL on loan receivables, (iv) major terms of each
outstanding loan receivables, and [v) actions taken for recovering the
loan receivables classified under stage 3 (creditimpaired) are disclosed
in note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Investment in Financial Instruments

During the Reporting Year, the Group's investment in financial instruments
business generated dividend income and realised gain on sale of
financial instruments amounting to net gain of approx. HK$6 million
(FY22: net loss of HK$1 million), and reported a segment loss before
taxation of approx. HK$6 million (FY22: HK$18 million) mainly
including (i) a loss of approx. HK$10 million (FY22: HK$15 million)
arising on change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and i) a realised gain of approx. HK$6 million (FY22:
realised loss of HK$ 1 million) by disposal of certain listed equities.

Movements in the listed and unlisted equities held by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the RZZTZ=F+—A=+—H A&EEFEEZE

Group at 31 December 2023 are as follows: TERER T TRAFBOT

Fair value as Fair value
compared fo gain/loss)
the consolidated recognised
Cost of Number of fotal assefs of during the
shares o shares held ot Fair value ot the Group ot year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
REE

R-B==& —E-=

tZA=t-A t=A=+-A
R-BZZf W-B==Zf R=B-=% AVYEHRLARE LEEERR

TZA=t-RA2 tZA=t-R tZA=t-RAz GREEAEZ ZBYE
R#RA  KEZRHEE AYE b 3 gt/ (8518)
Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal activifies HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERETRAZE TREH TET Th TET TET
Huanxi Media Group Limited Media and enteriainment related businesses, including
[stock code: 1003) development ond invesment in film and TV programmes righs,
RERREEARDA" as well os operation of an online video plafform.
(Huanxi Media Group Limited| RRRREAERY  CRRERRETYRERBIRE
(RIS - 1003) NREERSHATE 36,482 22,660 15,182 10% (9,744)
Ocean line Port Development Limited An inlond terminal operator in the PRC and is principally engoged
[stock code: 8502) in the provision of port logistic sewvices (including uploading
ERMERERARAA and unloading of cargoes, buk cargo handling services,
(RARE - 8502) confainer handling, storage and other services).
MENREENSER  TEREEODR
(BEEHEN HHERE SRERE BER
EibR) - 8,400 31,588 10,898 7% 2,894
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited Life insurance and other financial businesses including
[stock code: 376) subscription fees and management fees for products launched,
EREREEFRAA platform fees for distribution of thirdparties producs,
(RDKSE - 376) adminisiration fee for employees siock ownership plan
management services and brokerage commission income efc..
ASREREMEBES BRENERNABER
ERE DEEZHERNTAE BIRKHE
REERELELALUNT - 36,486 7,526 7,526 5% (602)

*EREY
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Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the
Group at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

R-ZB-_—_F+-_A=+—8 AKERKBEZE
TEAREBLMBRAFBAT :

Fair value as
compared fo Fair value loss
e consolidated recognised
Cost of Number of fofal assefs of during the
shares af shares held cf Fair value at the Group af year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022
S REE
TZA=t-H ===k
RZF-ZfF  RIF-Z RZF-Zf  APEEASE  T-A=t-H
TZA=t-B +ZA=+-H +ZA=+-H RaKEEH LLEEBER
ZBAEAR  BEZBRGEHA 2ATE pdid ZATERR
Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal activifies HK$'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERLTRAEE TEXH TER Tk TERL TEL
Huanxi Media Group Limited Media and enfertainment related businesses, including
[stock code: 1003) development ond invesiment in film and TV programmes righs,
REAREIARDA" as well as operation of an online video plafform.
[Huanxi Media Group Limited) BRLREERES  SRERRESY REREIRE
(RfA 5% - 1003) NREERRHATA - 36,923 22,960 25,256 % 7,091)

* B SY

The Group had made investments with a short to long ferm perspective
with the objective of making capital gain as well as income from
dividend. The Group invested in a diversified portfolio of listed equity
securities in various industries. The directors believe that the future
performance of the Hong Kong listed equities held by the Group is
largely affected by economic factors, investor sentiment, demand and
supply balance of an investee company’s shares and fundamentals of
an investee company, such as investee company’s news, business
fundamentals and development, financial performance and future
prospects. Accordingly, the directors closely monitor the above factors,
particularly the fundamentals of each individual investee company in the
Group's equity portfolio, and proactively adjust the Group's equity
portfolio mix in order to improve its performance.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

PLANS AND PROSPECTS
Chinese Health Products

In view of the increasing awareness in health and the aging of
population in Hong Kong, demand for health care products, especially
Chinese medicine, “Sum Yung” (2 ) and dried seafood in Hong
Kong has grown steadily in recent years. The Group will also strengthen
the promotion on health care products, such as cordyceps sinensis (%
@B H), ginseng (A2), tiangi (H+t), and dendrobium nobile (‘A
) efc. In order to cope with the rapid pace of life of modern people,
the Group also provides products like ginseng powder, energy drink,
probiofics capsules and ganodevma capsules.

Following the full resumption of normal travel between Hong Kong and
Mainland Ching, it is expected to have a positive impact and economic
recovery on the retail market of Hong Kong. To take advantage of the
shift to online shopping since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group will
continue to develop online sales channels for our Chinese health
products. During FY23, our sales channel through online platform
"HKTVmall" continues fo contribute stable tumover to this segment. Due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, more people are concemed about their
healthcare and prevention from being infected. We concentrated on the
promotion of all types of healthcare products that can safeguard our
health and enhance immunity.

The Group also actively affracts corporate customers. During FY23, our
marketing campaign successfully attracted certain charitable
organisations and institutional customers to order products such as
healthy tea bags, nutritions stew series and gift hampers, which
generated a higher gross profit margin.

The refail industry is still challenging given that the inflation, recruitment
difficulties, increasing ongoing cost and rent. Despite facing many
challenges, we will take advantage from technology and data to
optimize operations, such as considering the use of Customer
Relationship Management System ("“CRM” fo understand the needs of
consumers. Participate in shopping promotions organized by the Hong
Kong Refail Management Association, Manufacturers Association, and
payment platforms (such as Alipay) to increase brand exposure and
enhance popularity. And we will also consider parficipating in some live
commerce platforms in the coming year to expand our customer base.
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Money Lending

The Group's loan receivables together with accrued interest receivables
decreased to approx. HK$17 million (31 December 2022: approx.
HK$134 million). Given the easing of travel restrictions in 2023 and
the various measures fo affract tourists to visit Hong Kong, Hong Kong is
expected fo have a positive impact and economic recovery in 2024.
However, the Group expects the business environment for money
lending to be challenging and difficult because the Hong Kong Dollar
interest rate is sfill expected to remain in a relatively high level in 2024.
The Group will closely monitor the repayment pattern of our customers
and formulate an action plan of recovery should the risk of default
increases. Our recovery sirategy can involve a wide range of actions,
which includes the revising of repayment terms, adding of collaterals/
guarantees, reaching of setflement, the commencement of legal actions
against the customers, and/or enforcement on collaterals/guarantees,
efc. The Group will also be more cautious by strengthening ifs credit
policy and risk control policy.

Investment in financial instruments

The Group will closely monitor various factors such as global economy,
investment senfiment and fundamentals of investors and their future
prospects and protectively adjust our portfolio in order to improve our
performance. The Group will change our equity portfolio mix from fime
fo time and realise the equities held by the Group info cash as and
when appropriate.

Business Portfolio Management

The current business strategies of the Group with an aim to achieve the
best use of ifs resources and improve its overall performance and
portfolio diversification have been continuously evaluated. The Company
has been actively looking to diversify the revenue sources of the Group
in order fo creafe shareholders’ value through making investments and/
or acquiring business or projects that have promising outlooks and
prospects.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's cash and bank balances were
approx. HK$14 million (31 December 2022: HK$17 million). The
Group's total borrowings and convertible loan notes were approx.
HK$29 million (31 December 2022: HK$31 million) and approx.
HK$72 million (31 December 2022: approx. HK$71 million),
10 October
2024. Gearing rafio, calculated as the fotal borrowings and convertible

respectively. The convertible loan notes will be mature on

loan notes divided by shareholders’ equity was approx. 25.25 as af
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: 0.73). As at 31 December
2023, the Group recorded total current assets of approx. HK$140
million (31 December 2022: HK$275 million) and total current
liabilities of approx. HK$143 million (31 December 2022: HK$75
million]. The current ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total
current assets by the current liabilities, was approx. 0.98 (31 December
2022: 3.67). The Group recorded a decrease in shareholders’ fund
from approx. HK$ 139 million as at 31 December 2022 to a net asset
position of approx. HK$4 million as at 31 December 2023. The
decrease was mainly due fo the operating loss of the Group during the
Reporting Year.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approx.

and confract workers based in Hong Kong headquarters. The number of

100 employees

employees of the Group varies from time to time depending on
operation needs and they are remunerated based on industry practices.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, | would like to sincerely thank my fellow Board members
and senior management, and all the employees for their contribution
and dedications to the Group, which enabled us to overcome the
challenges encountered during the Year. My appreciations go fo our
investors, customers, financiers and suppliers for their support to the
Group during the past year.

Lei Hong Wai

Chairman and Executive Director

26 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded an increase in revenue
for approx. 3% from approx. HK$142 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approx. HK$146 million for the year ended 31
December 2023. The increase was due to the net effect of (1) the
increase in revenue from the investment in financial instrument segment
from loss of approx. HK$1 million in FY22 to gain of approx. HK$6
million in the Reporting Year; (2) the increase in revenue from sales of
the Chinese health product segment from approx. HK$128 million in
FY22 to approx. HK$130 million in the Reporting Year; and (3] the
decrease in revenue from the money lending segment from approx.

HK$ 15 million in FY22 to approx. HK$ 11 million in the Reporting Year.

Cost of goods sold ("COGS") decreased by approx. 3% compared to
FY22. The decrease was mainly affributable to the adjustment of product
mix of the Chinese health product segment to increase the gross profit
ratio. The COGS were approx. HK$86 million in FY23 compared with
approx. HK$89 million in FY22.

The gross profit increased to approx. HK$60 million for the Reporting
Year versus approx. HK$53 million in FY22. Gross profit margin
increased to approx. 41% (FY22: 37%) mainly due to the realised gain
of approx. HK$6 million (FY2022: loss of HK$1 million) from the

investment in financial instrument segment for the Reporting Year.

Other income, gains and losses, net for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to a loss of approx. HK$10 million (FY22: HK$10
million). Other income, gains and losses, net mainly included (1) fair
value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approx. HK$10 million (FY22: HK$15 million); and (2] government
grants of approx. HK$3 million in FY22.

Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2023 decreased to approx. HK$28 million, representing a decrease of
approx. 3% against approx. HK$29 million in the Corresponding Year.
The decrease in selling and distribution expenses was mainly due fo the
costsaving measures implemented in the Reporting Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
IR E SR

Gross Profit Ratio

ER=

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 31 December
2022, 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 and
for the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019

Selling Expense/Revenue

HERMX WA

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022,
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 and for the period
from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019

RBE_F_=Ff+_H=+—H ZF-—F+=-H REBE-_F-_=F+-_HA=+—H ZFT=-—#F1+=H
=t—H ZE-—#+H=F—AR=-F-_FF =+f—H ZEFE-_—FFTA=1—AR-FE-_FFA=
FTZA=TFT—HAUFEUE=ZF—NAFHA—HEZE=ZF A=1—HIFEUAR=ZF—NFHA—HZ=F—N1F
—NFF+=—A=+—HIFERE +ZHA=1+—HIEHE
el e
31 December 2022 31 December 2022
—®-—F+=-A=+-H 37% —g-—f+=fA=t+—H 20%
by o b o
Sil s Spoeenter o 1%
S s Bl
31 December 2019 46% 31 December 2019 29%
—®-AFt=A=t-A =F-nFt=A=t-A
0% 5 10 5 20 P25} 30 & 40 45 50 55} 0% 6 12 18 24 30
General and Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December BE—_T_=F+_A=1t—HLFE —KK

2023 amounted to approx. HK$38 million (FY22: HK$38 million).

Finance costs incurred mainly for convertible loan notes and other
borrowings during the Reporting Year was approx. HK$9 million as
compared with approx. HK$7 million in FY22.

Impairment loss under the expected credit loss model provided for the
year increased to approx. HK$ 107 million for the Reporting Year versus
approx. HK$25 million in FY22. The impairment loss mainly in relation
fo the loan receivables was recognised based on a valuation prepared
by an independent professional valuer. The impairment loss increased
mainly because 5 loan receivables were reclassified to stage 3 (credit
impaired), which usually generates a high allowance for ECL, during the
year.

All in all, the Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of
approx. HK$135 million in the Reporting Year compared with approx.
HK$54 million in FY22.
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General and administrative expenses/Revenue

—RRATEBAZ WA

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 31 December
2022, 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 and
for the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019

Management Discussion and Analysis

B ET R R 5T

Finance Costs/Revenue

BMERAE WA

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022,
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 and for the period
from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019

REE_F_—F+_H=+—H —F__F+_H BE_FT_=—F+_F=+—H —F__F+_F=+—
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—NF+ZA=+—HIEH =+ —HIEHRE
o, ST
31 December 2022 27% 31 December 2022 5.1%
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31 December 2021 19% 31 December 2021 3.8%
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31 December 2020 25% 31 December 2020 13.7%
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31 December 2019 29% 31 December 2019 16.4%
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GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2023, the non-current assets decreased approx.
23% to approx. HK$ 10 million compare with approx. HK$ 13 million in
the previous year. The decrease in non-current assefs was mainly due fo
the write off of a deferred tax asset of approx. HK$3 million related to
the loan receivables during the Reporting Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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EREIERFGEE  UBERZERTEEKTEN
ERRKRFERIEHHEKR - FTEREEETE
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Management placed much emphasis on inventory control and will
maintain a sufficient inventory level fo match future demand and to confrol
cost of sales. The increase in inventories of approx. 2% compared fo the
Corresponding Year, value of inventories increase from approx. HK$55
million as at 31 December 2022 to approx. HK$56 million as at 31
December 2023 to restore the normal inventory level for the increasing
demand in the Chinese New Year. Inventories turnover days were 236
days compared with 238 days in the Corresponding Year.

Total Liabilities
EEHEE

Inventories

i

31 December 2023
—®_=%+"A=1+—8H

B S ) 145,272

31 December 2022
—2_—H+-A=t+—-H 55,121 :g:%ii@%eéio—zaz 149,010
1D 2021
Tl 0713 0 [
31 December 2020 31 December 2020
—E-sFt=A=1-H 47,964 —F-sFt-5=1—8 137,987
31 March 2020
—z-gE=A=t+-R 68,939 :gigﬁirggio_zg 271,754
0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000 0 100,000 200,000 300,000 400,000
HK$'000 HK%QOO
FB T

The trade receivables remained stable as at 31 December 2023 af
approx. HK$6 million, compared with approx. HK$6 million as at 31
December 2022. Debtor turnover days were 14 days in FY23
compared with 15 days in FY22. The Management regularly evaluates
the Group's customers, assesses their known financial position and the
credit risks.

Cash and bank balance as at 31 December 2023 were approx.
HK$ 14 million, compared with approx. HK$17 million as at 31
December 2022. The Group dealt with different revenue and
expenditure currencies during the Reporting Year such as HK$, US$ and
RMB.

Trade payables, other payable and accrued charges recorded a
decrease against the Corresponding Year. Trade payables, other
payables and accrued charges were approx. HK$33 million as at 31
December 2023 compared with approx. HK$36 million as at 31
December 2022. The trade payables mainly consisted of payables
relating to material purchases and the trading products. During the
Reporting Year, creditor turnover days were 100 days compared with

85 days in FY22.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEET RO

Borrowings and convertible loan notes decreased to approx. HK$101 HEERABRBERZEER _T_—_F+=
—e

million as at 31 December 2023 from approx. HK$102 million as ot =+—BZH—EBZ_BE&B LRI E=

31 December 2022, mainly affributable fo the decrease in shortferm

borrowings as af 31 December 2023.
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Current Ratio
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had fofal assets of HK$150
million which was financed by shareholders’ fund, payables and
borrowings. The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in
HK$, US$ and RMB and did not have any related hedges for the year
ended 31 December 2023. No financial instrument was used for
hedging purpose. The Group adopted a prudent funding and treasury
policy and managed the fluctuation exposures of exchange rate and
interest rafe on specific transactions.

As at 31 December 2023, The Group's borrowings with an outstanding
principal amount of approximately HK$ 15 million were denominated in
HK$ (bore inferest at a fixed rate], repayable on demand or within one
year and were pledged by a subsidiary’s investment in Hong Kong
listed equities with carrying amount of HK$40 million. The Group's
borrowing with an outstanding principal amount of approximately
HK$14 million were denominate in HK$ (bore interest at Hong Kong
Prime Rate (as quoted by the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited) plus 4% per annum and maturing on 16 May
2024. As at 31 December 2023, the convertible loan nofes issued by
the Company amounted to HK$72 million which bore interest at 6% per
annum and will be matured on 10 October 2024 af their principal
amount or can be converted into ordinary shares of the Company at the
holder's option at the fixed rate of HK$0.38 per share of the
outstanding principal.

RZZE-_ZF+-A=+—H AEEZEEL
BEAE—REBRATEEL A2RRAKRRES B
NREBEREE - AEBEEZ WA RKAREZL
BT ETRARESE BREBEE_T_=4F
T A=+ BULEEWET I TIEREE T
MEFEASM T AUES S - AEEHRAREY
MERTBEBOR  BEBER P 2ER K RE
AR -

R-TE_=F+-_A=t—H AEEKREERN
SRR THBEERBTZEETEITE (12
BIEMEFE) ARERIN—FAREE I
UEREEANTEET, —HHBARREEL
MERARESF ZIREFER - AEEREELSR
MB—THBEEBTZERTNEBITFE(RE
BLEBESRTERAB MM EBRERNEK
SMEMNEFOZHAHE) YR _F_WFR
At BE#H R-_T_=F+_A=+—H"
ARBETRELT _A8BTZARRERE
B ABERFEERNEFR YR _FT_MF
TATHIE A ARTERRRLRAE A
BRTH=Z\ETZEEHEETERAARE LR
A% o

FREEREERERAT —T-FR 19



Management Discussion and Analysis
IR E SR

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded fotal current assets of
approx. HK$ 140 million and total current liabilities of approx. HK$143
million. The current rafio of the Group, calculated by dividing the tofal
current assets by total current liabilities, was approx. 0.98. The Group
recorded a decrease in shareholders’ funds from approx. HK$ 139
million as at 31 December 2022 to approx. HK$4 million as at 31
December 2023. The decrease was mainly due fo the operating loss of
the Group during the Reporting Year.

Total Assets
BEEHAE
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Bank and other Borrowings
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been translated af the approx. exchange rates prevailing af the close of ZFZ=%F+4= ﬂ T—HEEERERRZE
business on 31 December 2023. HBITEXRKRE

Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed herein, the Group did not
have any debt securities issued and outstanding, or authorised or
otherwise created but unissued, any term loans (secured, unsecured,
guaranteed or not), any other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature
of borrowing including bank overdrafts and liabilities under acceptances
(other than normal trade bills) or acceptance credits, any mortgages or
charges, or other material contingent liabilities or guarantee at the close
of business on 31 December 2023. Foreign currency amounts have

AEBEZZERREERANRERMBE LT -F
EREREEMNIZETE T RN EEAEN
ERH -BF(RXREF)RL KA EAKE
ZAMERMEEELZRERE  EAEA
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HEEE
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The Group's operation relied upon the support from suppliers and
financial institutions. Facilities and credit terms are provided on the basis
of which certain financial and operational undertakings are complied
with. On behalf of the Board, the Directors are of the opinion that, after
taking info accounts the Group's internal resources and cash flow from
operations, the Group will have sufficient working capital fo satisfy its — +=
present requirements for the next twelve months from the date of this
report in the absence of unforeseen circumstances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties which may impact the

Group's financial conditions, results of operations or future performance

and how the Group to mitigate these risks is set out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete and comprehensive

statement of all potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, but

rather those risks which the Group currently believes may have a

significant impact on the Group's performance and future prospects.

B ET R R 5T

FERRETHBPEER

AREFEARE ZMBINN  EEXEEHIARAREK
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ERERRAEHAREZ KRB RKAREKX
EXFE-

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions
FTERR nE FEER
Strategic risk Strategic risk is the risk that medium and long-  ®  Extensive invesiment management experience

RS MR R

Economic risk
OB R B

Credit risk

=&
I:I/\

term profitability and/or reputation of the
Group could be adversely impacted by the
failure either to identify or implement the
correct strategy, or to react oppropriotely to
changes in the business environment.

SR 14 B PR A TR 2K B 7 1 K T e LF SR B
FBEXRRECELEE &Fgﬁ'ﬁﬂ$ﬁ
@Epﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ N R/ HBBERD
NEEZEAR

Economic risk is the risk of any downturn in
economic conditions could impact the
Group's performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers’ inability to
repay loans and lower asset values.
rRERBRAIEATFENEEERME
BURRRIENMR BEBEREMEZEAEHE
RPZEMEETITRR -

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counferparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations.

EERERRMEMIACEPARFHHTF
REBTESGHNET AEBEAZVBE
Bz Rk -

of the Board.
EFENREEEBZEELR -

®  Regularly review on strategy and performance
of each business unit.
EHRE R X E A R MR -

e  Perform comprehensive due diligence on all
potential acquisitions.

A RERBERATEAERES

®  Regularly review forward looking indicators to
identify economic conditions.

TE HIRR A ATBE LR AR AR R AR B IR IR -

e Fully understand customers and carry out credit
quality assessment on customers before
granting loans.
RELERNZHETREFPLH TP ELT
EEE R -

®  Regularly monitor loans receivables and assess
for their recoverability.

EHERBRERMZERRPRE -
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B E TR & 5T

Principal risks

TERRE

Description

Ak

Mitigating actions
B RIE

Liquidity risk
MENE & B

Price risk

(ERENE

Exchange risk

PEE 3 LR

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its financial obligations as

they fall due.
nBEE AR 7%21»‘%.515 THRHZ
M EEZ AR

Price risk is the risk that changes in equity
prices will affect the Group's income and the
value of its holdings of equities.

ERER AR ERNE B WA R EFRR
EEEZREZH AR

Exchange risk is the risk that changes in
foreign exchange rates will affect the Group's
income and the value of ifs holdings of asses.
EHERABTERAEBRAREMFTE
EBEZINEEREEH 2 ERE -
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Regularly monitor liquidity and statement of
financial position.
EHERRBE S MPIBIRRE
Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
commitments.

REBEERBDE S KB AR -

Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing only in
securities listed on stock exchanges.
FRERBENXZA ETEFRETEHE
TR

Ensure acceptable and appropriate finance in
place, or believed to be available before
committing investment projects.
AEREBEIBREAABFAAIEIK
BEES -

Regularly monitor equity portfolio to address
any porifolio issues promptly.
EHERREREHE AR R IEE @R
BHEARHEE -

Spread price risk exposure by investing a
number of eqUHies

BREZERZEAD BRERRER -

Closely monitor statement of financial position
and cashflow exchange risk exposures and
where considered appropriate use of financial
instruments, such as forward exchange
contracts, foreign currency options and forward
rafe agreements, fo hedge this exchange risk.
ﬁfﬂ ERPBMRRKRRERERRR

YHERRERZIE ﬂTﬁﬁﬁ@F‘?ﬂIﬁ(ﬂD
EHIIMNE A K - HMNE B AR KR BN R 5
S R e I SRR
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ERET R RS

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions

TERE Ak EFRIE

People risk People risk is the risk of loss the services of @ Provide competitive reward and benefit
AERR any directors, senior management and other packages that ensure our ability fo attract and

legal and regulatory risk

ERMEERR

key personnel which could have a material
adverse effect on the Group's businesses.
AERBRAENES FREEABRE
MEBABRIEREAIEHAEBREE
RERTHMEE 2R

legal and regulatory risk is the risk that @
breach of laws and regulations could lead to
litigation, investigations or disputes, resulting
in additional costs being incurred, civil and/
or criminal proceedings and reputational
damage.
FEREREERRAERERKER TS
BFas  #AEHAMD  ELEBINKA R
ERGMERFREBREZRR

Capital and Financial Risk

Our capital and financial risk management are set out in the Note 36

and Note 37 1o the financial statements.

retain the employees we need.
REALF N2 BB RENFEAERAN
SEBERENBEIRBEMBIAL

e Ensure that the staff of the Group has the right
working environment fo enable them to do the
best job possible and maximise their
satisfaction at work.
BRASEZEIRABEZITIERENS
BIRRAAGEMET TERRAREMIE
BETZIEREE -

*  Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory environment and ensure that
sufficient resources being made available to
implement any required changes.
ERRERREZEHNERIERATALZ
BREANBEEMBREZEE -

o  Seek legal or other specialist advice as

appropriate.
HERSIOARAHMBERALER
XK HBERER

B EARRB AR EEHN MG RKRME
36 M MiEE37
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EEET RO

CHANGE IN BOARD LOT SIZE

With effect from 9:00 a.m. on 29 September 2022, the board lof size
for trading in the shares of the Company [the "Shares”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited will be changed from 50,000 Shares
to 10,000 Shares. The reduction in board lot size will lower each
board lot value and thus the threshold for investors to acquire the Shares,
which will facilitate the trading and improve the liquidity of the Shares
so that the Company can attract more investors and broaden the
shareholder base.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

During the Reporting Year, no proceed from fund raising activities was
used. As at 31 December 2023, there was no unutilised proceed from
fund raising activities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

Saved from those mentioned in this report, the Group did not have any
other significant investments or acquisitions or sales of subsidiaries
during the Reporting Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognise the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully commited to doing so. The Board
believes that high standards of corporate governance provide a
framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business risks,
enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability and
profect stakeholders' interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate
governance principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2023.

CORPORATE PURPOSE, VALUES AND STRATEGIES

For many vears, the Board has focused on pursuing the corporate
purpose of empowering and developing our employees to create long-
ferm value and sustainable growth for our shareholders.

EEERTA

ARRIAAEBEAEXRBMTE AN ERMAR
MHEBALRENSZESRELRERZER
- MEFE—ERNETEREIE-EF2M
5 BKRECRERERERAEEEERFRE
ERRE  TEADEREBRARNIEREAE -
e R RKEMB L RREEFBBALZT
2o

AEBEC2REABEXIABAERAA (B
Frl) &S Em AR (T EMARRD MERC il
FEREATA(TEXERTHDRABEER
BRE  RAKERBLEERRUREHRIES -

EERA BE-_E-_=F+-A=+t—HIL=E
B ARA-ERTRALREATHLHET
R gL

XA EEBRER

BER BEEEEINEEHERBERNLXA
B RERRAEREEERERAFELEER -
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The Board recognises the need to establish the correct culture and values
to pursue the Company’s purpose and fo ensure good standards of
behavior are maintained throughout the Group. To fosfer the Company’s
culture, the Board continues to promote the following values within the

Group:

(a) Integrity

We insist on trustworthy behavior and always acting with integrity
— “doing the right thing”, infernally and extemally.

(b) Responsible

We conduct our business in a responsible way and are
responsible for our actions, outcomes, and reputation.

(c) Collaborative and supportive

We foster a collaborative and supportive environment for
attracting, developing, and retaining the best talent for our
business.

(d) Teamwork

We promote teamwork in a fair and open environment, where
employees and their contributions are valued and respected.

(e) Customer focus

We take the time to know our customers and understand their
business needs, so they feel listened to and valued. We are
responsive and flexible, ensuring they stay with us for the long
term.

In pursuing the Company’s purposes, the Company adopts two principal
strategies, namely: (i) to grow recurring eamings, cash flow and capital
return and to sfrengfhen its financial position; and (i) to atfract, retain,
and develop falented employees.

The Board believes that the culture of a business, in conjunction with its
values, is vitally important to the Company's successful long-term
performance. How the Board members conduct themselves sefs the
culture within the Group — a good standard of behavior has fo be set
from the top.

The Board constantly monitors the Company’s culture to ensure that

policies, practices, and behavior throughout are aligned with the
Company's purpose and strafegies.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3
fo the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2023. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of the
Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the
Model Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required
fo notify the Chairman in writing and obtain a written acknowledgement
from the Chairman prior to any dealings in the Securities.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for providing leadership and confrol of the
Company and monitoring the performance of the management,
approving the financial statements and annual budgets. It focuses on the
formulation of business strategy, policy and control. Day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated fo the Execufive Directors and
senior management of the Group. The Board reviews and approves key
matters affecting the Company’s strategic policies, finances and
shareholders, such as financial statements, dividend policy and major
corporate acfivities. Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
Management through Executive Directors who have attended Board
meetings.

The Board currently comprises six Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material /relevant relationship) among
members of the Board. Their names and brief biographies are set out on
pages 52 to 54 of this Annual Report.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors are high calibre executives
with diversified indusiry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and
experience fo the Company. One of the Independent Non-executive
Direcfor possesses recognized professional qualifications in accounting.
All' Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, performance, risk and people through their
confribution at Board meetings.

The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
a written annual confirmation of independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board considers that the three Independent Non-
executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board, are independent
in character and they also meet the independence guidelines as sef out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board meetings are scheduled at approximately. quarterly intervals, and
additional meetings will be held when required. The Directors have
access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services of
the Company Secretary of the Company. Independent professional
advice may be taken by the Directors as required. There were nine
Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2023.

All Directors are subject fo retirement by rofation once every three years
and are subject fo re-election in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence and proper
checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the business strategy
and direction of the Company and has executive responsibilities,
provides leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective
functioning of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The Chief
Executive Officer is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company's strategies and the co-ordinafion of
overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the fifle of Chief Executive Officer
up fo the date of this annual report. In the absence of the Chief
Executive Officer, the duties of the Chief Executive Officer have been/
will continue to be undertaken by other executive members of the Board,
namely Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion, Mr. leung Alex, Ms. lo Ming
Wan, Mr. Tse Chi Keung and Mr. Yuan Huixia, therefore, in the
opinion of the Directors, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer have been/will continue to be properly segregated in
the absence of an officer carrying the fitle of Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Commitfee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
commiffees of the Company are esfablished with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board commitiees have been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website
and are available to shareholders upon request.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED/HELD

The attendance records of each Direcfor at the meetings of the
shareholders, the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2023
are sef out below:

EEZEY
EERERU-EZRE HEZZEE FH

ZESMREZES  UERARAEHEITHZ
EB -ARAMAEEREEHREMAT IR
REERTIF -EEZEeZRERECDTIE
EARBBAERBZAME TR BERERER]
HER] -

HE BITEBERY
BREEREE T _=F+_A=1+—HItFE
HERRE =52 BEXZET FHEZESK
RELZEGSHZBEHTNT ¢

2023
Annual
General
Remuneration Nomination Audit Meeting
Board Committee Committee Committee (“AGM")
—E-=F
RRBFRE
(TRRBEF
Exg ¥FMzEEe REZEE ERZE® X&)
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai (Chairman) IR EE (F/EF) 9/9 1/1 1/1 - 1/1
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REEELE
{Vice Chairman) (BIE/E) 9/9 - - - 1/1
Mr. leung Alex RIEEFE 9/9 - - - 1/
Ms. Lo Ming Wan ST 9/9 = - - 1/1
Mr. Tse Chi Keung MEBLE 9/9 - - - 1/1
Mr. Yuan Huixia REBELE 8/9 = = = 1/1
Independent Non-executive BIUFHITES
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen HEREE 8/9 1/1 1/1 4/4 1/1
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REREE 8/9 1/1 1/1 4/4 1/1
Mr. Lien Wai Hung HEELE 8/9 1/1 1/1 4/4 1/1
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COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1) AND (2), AND
3.10A OF THE LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board af all fimes mef
the requirements set ouf in Rules 3.10(1) and (2}, and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors (representing at least one+third of the Board) with
at least one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In defermining the independence of directors, the Board follows the
independence guidelines sef out in the Listing Rules. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive director an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN BOARD MEMBERS

There is no relationship between the members of the Board.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

To assist Directors’ confinuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors fo attend relevant seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development programmes, such as external seminars organised by
qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in relation to their confribution to the Board. A record of the fraining
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated by the
Company.

The Directors also understand the importance of confinuous professional

development and are committed fo participating any suitable training fo
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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According to the records provided by the Directors to the Company — 1RBRZE ERIREHEVATRIRIAR ARH 2 528k -
pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have participated in appropriate 2 EEEEABREFER2HEE VHEELERE

continuous professional development activiies during the Reporting Year sE&j o HiE—= — =

=

F+-A=+—BILFE

under review. The individual training record of each Director for the year & & = pri = > @RI IRt 20T -

ended 31 December 2023 is summarised below:

Directors’ duties and
responsibilities/
Corporate Governance/

Updates on Laws, Rules and

Business related/Accounting/

Financial/Management or

Regulations other professional skills
ESCRBRBE TEER ES TV - dr
BB - REAIRBR G2 EH ETERHEMEER R
Attending Attending
Reading seminars/ Reading seminars/
materials conferences materials conferences
HEHmEE HEHEE S
B A 28 B AT k-
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman) ELE(EE) 4 v v 4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion REESEE (BIE/E)

(Vice Chairman) 4 4 4 4
Mr. Lleung Alex RIEW K v v/ v v
Ms. lo Ming Wan SRRt v v v/ v/
Mr. Tse Chi Keung #8585t & v v v/ v/
Mr. Yuan Huixia RIBERAE v v v v/
Independent Non-executive BYKYITES

Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen mEBREE v v v/ v
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REFRFE v v v v/
M. Llien Wai Hung ERMESRE v v v v
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INDEPENDENT VIEWS AND INPUT TO THE BOARD

To ensure that independent views and input are available to the Board,

the Company has esfablished the following mechanism, and the

implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism are reviewed

annually.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d]

(e)

(f

(g

(h)

32

The Board must ensure the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors and at least onethird of its
members being independent non-executive directors (or such
higher threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules) from time
fo time.

Each Board commitiee must comprise a majority of independent
non-executive directors.

The independence of independent non-executive directors is
assessed upon appointment, annually, reappointment, and at any
other time where the circumstances warrant reconsideration.

The independent non-executive directors are required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change in their
personal particulars that may materially affect their independence.

Independent non-executive directors receive fixed fees for their role
as members of the Board and Board committees and are not
entitled to equity-based remuneration [e.g. share options or grants)
with performance-related elements.

Further re-appointment of an independent non-executive director
[including the long-serving independent non-executive director] is
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
shareholders.

Independent non-executive directors should not be involved in the
daily management of the Company nor in any relationship or
circumstance which would affect the exercise of their independent
judgement.

All directors are entifled to seek independent professional advice

on issues relevant to their function and duties at the Company's
expense.
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[i)  Direcfors are required fo declare their and their connected entfities’
direct or indirect interests, if any, in proposals or transactions fo
be considered by the Board af Board meetings and withdraw
from the meetings as appropriate.

[j)  The Chairman of the Board meets with the independent non-
executive directors af least annually without the presence of the
executive Direcfors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive directors of the Company are nof appointed for a
specific ferm, but are subject fo retirement from office by rofafion and re-
election in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s byelaws.

DIVERSITY

The Board believes that a diversified Board brings constructive challenge
and fresh perspectives fo discussions. The Board considers diversity, in
its broadest sense (and not limited fo gender], during Board composition
reviews and the development of selection criteria for appointing a new
director.

The Company’s Board diversity policy, which is available on the
Company's website, provides that the selection of candidates during the
nomination process will be based on a range of diverse perspectives.
These perspectives include but not be limited fo gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, ethnicity, skills,
knowledge, and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on the merit and contribution the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The policy does not contain any measurable objectives or targefs
for implementation. The policy is reviewed annually by the Board to
ensure ifs effectiveness.

The Company currently have both male and female directors on the
Board. To achieve and improve gender diversity, each time a new
director is appointed to the Board, where possible, both male and
female candidate will be shortlisted.

Defails on the gender ratio in the Group’s workforce can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

The Company has adopted a directors’ remuneration policy aiming fo
set out the overall guiding principles and structure for remuneration
packages of direcfors to affract, mofivate, reward, and refain the right
falent in pursuing and driving the Company’s long-term goals and
ensuring business sustainability and growth. The directors’ remuneration
policy comprises remuneration guiding principles and remuneration
structure. The remuneration of executive directors is defermined based
on, among others, their scope of duties, responsibilities, skills, and
experience required, corporate and individual performances, prevailing
market practice, and general economic situation. The remuneration of
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors is
defermined based on, among others, the number of board committees
served, experience and level of responsibilities undertaken and
prevailing market practice. In the remuneration structure for independent
non-executive directors are not entitled to reward with equity-based
remuneration. A copy of the directors’ remuneration policy is available
on the Company's website.

Defails of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in Note 14(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The details of the five individual with highest emoluments are set out in
Note 14(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of senior management (excluding
directors) by band are sef out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen and
Mr. lien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. lei Hong Wai. Mr. lai Hok
Lim is the Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee. The function of the
Remuneration Committee is fo review and make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management. As part of the decision-making
process, the Company has adopted the standard declaration of inferest
procedures for all Board and commitiee meetings to ensure that no
director or committee member will be asked to participate at any
decision-making of matters in which they have a material inferest, such
as decisions regarding his own remuneration. The fees of the Non-
executive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are defermined by the Board.
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All members of the Remuneration Committee met one time during the

year ended 31 December 2023 for a proposal on remuneration
packages and employment contracts for submission to the Board for
approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company does not
have any share option scheme or share award plan. And therefore no
material matter relating fo the share option scheme or share award plan
required the review or approval of the Remuneration Committee.

The Company adopfs a competitive remuneration package for its
employees. Promotion and salary increments are assessed based on a
performance related basis in order to attract, retain and motivate
talented executives/employees to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee in 2006. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen and
Mr. Llien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. lei Hong Wai. Mr. Lei
Hong Wai is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The function
of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes to complement the Group's corporate
strategy.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will
consider various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and
regional experience and length of service.

On selection of candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity. All appointment will be based on merit and confribution that
the selected candidates would bring to the Board.
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The Company has adopted a nomination policy aiming to ensure the

Board has a balance of skills, experience, knowledge, and diversity of

perspectives appropriafe fo the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select, and recommend

candidate(s) for directorships fo the Board by giving due consideration

fo selection criteria including but not limited fo:

(a)

(b

(d)
(e)

(h

te])

diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge and length of service;

commitment fo responsibilities of the Board in respect of available
time and relevant interest:

quo|ificoﬂons, including occomphshmenf and experience in the
relevant industries the Company’s business is involved in;

independence;
reputation for infegrity;

pofential confributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board;
and

plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend retiring

director(s) to the Board for re-appointment by giving due consideration

to the selection criteria, including but not limited fo:

(a)

(b)

the overall contribution and service of the refiring director(s) to the
Company, including but not limited to the attendance of the
meetings of the Board and/or its committees and general
meetings where applicable, in addifion fo the level of participation
and performance on the Board and/or its committees; and

whether the refiring director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the selection
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend candidate(s)

for the position(s) of the independent non-executive directors of the

Company by giving due consideration to the factors including but not
limited to those set out in Rules 3.10, 3.10A and 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in addition to the selection criteria.
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The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the

appointment of a director in accordance with the following procedures
and processes:

[a)

(b)

c)

(d)

le]

(f

te]]

(h)

the Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration fo the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus
the search effort;

the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in idenfifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing directors, adverfising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from shareholders of
the Company with due consideration given fo the selection
criteria;

the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks;

upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of
written resolutions fo, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
fo the Board for appoiniment;

the Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of
the selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation fo the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and where a non-executive director is considered,
the Remuneration Committee will make the recommendation fo the
Board on the proposed remuneration package;

the Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not members of
the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

all appointments of directors will be confirmed by the filing of the
consent to act as director of the relevant director (or any other
similar filings requiring the relevant director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as direcfor, as the case may be) to be
filed with the relevant Companies Registry.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
conducted an annual review of the structure, size and composition of the
Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, an Audit Committee was established on 14
March 2000. The Audit Committee currently consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Lai Hok Lim and Mr. Llien Wai Hung. Mr. Wong Tak Chuen is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters.

Written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted by the Board since the
date of establishment. The principal activities of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting
process (including the preparation of the inferim and annual results,
internal controls and corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held
four meetings including the review of the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2022, and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 before their submission to the Board and
monitored the integrity of such consolidated financial statements, and the
planning meetings with the auditors in reaction to the interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2022 and the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2023. In addition, the Audit Committee also had
a private meetfing with the independent auditor without the presence of
management fo discuss any area of concern. The attendance of each
member of the Audit Committee is set out in the section headed

"Number of Meetings Attended,/Held" of this Report.

The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters defermined by the external auditor under Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing for the year ended 31 December 2023. It also reviewed
and discussed the review report on risk management and infernal control
systems of the Group from APAC Compliance Consultancy and Infernal
Control Services limited, an independent risk management and internal
control review adviser appointed by the Board fo carry out an annual
independent review. The Audit Committee also discussed the Group's
risk management and internal control systfems with the executive directors
to ensure the executive directors had performed their duties to have
effective systems properly in place. The Audit Committee also discussed
the accounting policies and practices that might affect the Group and
financial reporting matters with the management and external auditors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and is safisfied with the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, fraining and continuous professional
development of Direcfors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration paid or

payable to the independent auditor for the audit services amounted to
approx. HK$1,300,000.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements as sef out on pages 70 to 212. The statement of the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out on pages 64 to 69.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls and risk management which
covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk management
of the Company, as well as continuous moniforing the effectiveness of
such internal controls and risk management. The Board has delegated
such responsibility to the management of the Company. The
management, under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-
going process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks
faced by the Group.
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The Audit Committee reviews the infernal confrols and risk management

that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit

Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and

experience of sfaff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting

function, as well as their training programmes and budges.

(a)

40

the process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
e |dentify risks that may potentially affect the Group's business
and operations.

Risk Assessment
e Assess the risks identified by using the assessment criferia
developed by the management; and

e  Consider the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
®  Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment: and

e Determine the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting
®  Perform ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in

place;

° Revise the risk management strafegies and internal confrol
processes in case of any significant change of situation;
and

e Report the results of risk monitoring to the management and

the Board regularly.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

the main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assefs
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper maintenance
of accounting records for provision of reliable financial information
used within the business or for publication; and to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

an acknowledgement by the board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain that
such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group and
endeavours fo identify, contfrol impact of the identified risks and
facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group's business. It was decided that the
Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

(b)

(d)

s
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As the Company does not have an internal audit function, the
Board has engaged APAC Compliance Consultancy and Internal
Control Services Limited as its risk management and internal
control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the annual review
of the risk management and infernal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. Such
review is conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under
rotation basis. The scope of review was previously defermined
and approved by the Board. The Adviser has reported findings
and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee and
management. The Board/Audit Committee are of the view that
there are no material internal control defeats noted. All
recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed up by
the Group fo ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Board therefore considered that the risk
management and infernal control systems are effective and
adequate.

(e) the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and fimely disclosure
are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The policy
regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information,
which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
depariments;

e Designated persons and departments to defermine further

escalation and disclosure as required; and

e Designafed persons authorised fo act as spokespersons and
respond fo external enquiries.

The Board reviewed the need for an internal audit function, but has
decided that because of the size of the Group, it cannot be jusfified af
present. The Board will review this decision annually.

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications

and experience, fraining programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting functions.
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The Company has adopted a policy and procedures on disclosure of
inside information which contains the guidelines to the directors and all
the relevant employees of the Group fo ensure that the inside information
of the Company is fo be disseminated to the public in an equal and
timely manner in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board is satisfied that the infernal control sysfem in place covering
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
confrols and risk management functions for the year under review and
up fo the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective
and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. lo Ming Wan, is the Company Secretary of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She reports to the
Chairman. Ms. Lo has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than

15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2023.

WHISTLEBLOWING AND PREVENTION OF BRIBERY

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance,
emphasising accountability and a high degree of transparency which
enable its stakeholders to have trust and faith in the Company to take
care of their needs and to fulfill its social responsibility. In line with this
commitment, the Group expects and encourages ifs employees and
other parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers, confracfors,
suppliers, creditors and debtors, etc.) to report any misconduct,
malpractice or irregularity within the Group. The Company has a
whistleblowing policy that provides the reporting channels and guidance
on reporting possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or
other matters. All reported matters will be investigated independently
and, in the meantime, all information received from a whistleblower and
his/her/its identity will be kept confidential. A copy of the
whistleblowing policy is available on the Company’s website.

The Company commifs fo mainfaining confidence in the infegrity of the
Group. All directors and employees should show the highest business
integrity in their dealings with others and should conduct the Group's
business in accordance with the law and principles of good business
practice. The Company prohibits all forms of bribery and corruption and
has embedded in the Group's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics a
set of prevention of bribery policies.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

On 31 December 2018, the Company has approved and adopted a
dividend policy. The Company considers the dividend policy creates
flexibility on the Board in declaring the payments of dividends.

Under the dividend policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. The declaration, payment, and
amount of dividends are subject to the Board's discrefion having regard
to the following factors:

[a)  the eamings, financial conditions, capital requirements and future
plans of the Group;

(b)  the shareholders interests of the Company;
(c)  the economic outlook;

(d) the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company to its shareholders;

(e) the statutory and regu|ofory restrictions on the payment of

dividends by the Company; and

(i any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders” interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolufions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person

for election as a Director of the Company are available on the
Company's website [www.healthwisehk.com).
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Procedures for shareholders to convene extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposal at general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (the “law”). However, shareholders are requested fo
follow Article 72 of the Articles of Association (the “Articles”] of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 72 of the Arficles of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company, or on the writtlen requisition of any
one member which is a recognised clearing house, deposited at the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general meefings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If the Board does not within 21 days from
the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the fotal voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed fo them by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the Company:

Address: Unit 1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2548 5575

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or sfatement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
confact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company highly values its relationship with its shareholders and
other stakeholders. It has put in place an effective corporate
communication system which provides transparent, regular and timely
public disclosures to ifs shareholders and other stakeholders. The main
features of the system are as follows:

e The Company maintains a corporate website (www.healthwisehk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Group, including
core business, financial reports, public announcements, circulars
and news of the Group, is disclosed. Shareholders can obtain
corporate communication electronically via the Company’s
website.

e The Company establishes and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders and other stakeholders through
annual reports, inferim reports and other publication.

e AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The respective chairmen of the Board and Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees (or in the absence of
the chairmen of such Committees, another member of each
Committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate) will
endeavor to be available to answer questions raised by
shareholders.

e Separate resolutions are proposed af general meetings for each

substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.
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®  Defails of the proposed resolutions to be put forward at a general
meeting are, where necessary or appropriate, included in a
circular to the shareholders dispafched prior to the date of the
relevant general meeting.

e Al resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting are taken by
poll. The poll results are published on the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk and on the Company’s website in
accordance with Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

The Company’s shareholders’ communication policy, which is available
on the Company's website, ensures that shareholders and the investment
community are provided with equal and timely access to information
about the Company, including its financial performance, strategic goals
and plans, material developments and corporate governance, and also
allows them to engage actively with the Company. The policy sets out
various communication channels, including, among others, the
Company's website, investor briefings, and shareholders’ meetings,
through which shareholders may communicate with and provide
feedback to the Company from time to time. The policy is reviewed
annually by the Board to ensure ifs effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board reviewed the
policy and considered that the policy was effective and sufficient, given
that multiple channels were in place and adopted to facilitate
communications with shareholders and the investment community in
conformity with market practices.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 June 2023,
the shareholders of the Company approved certain amendments made
fo the constitutional documents of the Company, among other things,
conform to the core shareholder protection standards set out in Appendix
3 (which has been renumbered to Appendix Al with effect form 31
December 2023) to the Listing Rules which came into effect on 1
January 2022. Details of the amendments were disclosed in the

Company's circular dated 27 April 2023.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
second amended and restated Articles of Association on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
investment in financial instruments. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are sales of Chinese health products, money lending and
investment in financial instruments.

An analysis of the Group's turnover and segment information is sef out in
Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are sef
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 70.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out in Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 15
to 24.

The Company has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company. The Company will seek
professional legal advice from legal advisers, where necessary, to
ensure fransactions and business to be performed by the Company are
in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the year

ended 31 December 2023 [year ended 31 December 2022: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
Reporting Year are set out in page 73 and Note 30 fo the financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Defails of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are sef out in Nofe 28 to the financial
sfatements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Defails of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in
Note 15 fo the financial stafements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions and responsibilities,
and individual performance of the Directors, senior management and
general staff and are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard fo the salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities,
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year ended
31 December 2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
13 June 2024 to Tuesday, 18 June 2024 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to determine
the entiflement to affend and vote at the 2023 AGM of the Company to
be held on Tuesday, 18 June 2024, all fransfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not lafer than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 12 June 2024.

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assefs and

liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial periods.

TFEMBHRE

MAXE BEREE-

TREEAEENBERENBRRAS R

Period from
1 April
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 2019 to
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RZE—NF
BE HE HE HE mMA—HZE
—g-=& ==t =E=—t —E-FTF —E-NEF
+=A=+-B +=A=+—-8 t=A=+-H8 +=A=+—-B +=A=+—AH
LEE EFE HFE HFE 1FHAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TAT TAT FTAT FTAT
Revenue WA 146,317 142,058 170,079 137,853 107,907
loss before income tax from R EIFEL L ER%
continuing operations 2R BHAIEE (132,059) (56,401) (100,580) (72,929 (118,951)
Income tax credit/expense)  FTSBE %,/ (F%) (2,499) 2,127 (2,466) 3,648 (1,265)
Loss for the year from FARBRHELEED
continuing operations pd i (134,558) (54,274) (103,046) (69,281) (120,216)
Profit/loss| for the year from  FRREBLIELE
discontinued operations B8,/ (B8) - - - 44,059 6,658
Loss for the year FREE (134,558) (54,274) (103,0406) (25,222 (126,874)
Attributable fo: AT AT
Owners of the Company ARARIZHEBA (134,558) (54,274) (103,0406) (25,222) (124,345)
Non-controlling interests JF R s - - - - (2,529)
(134,558) (54,274) (103,046) (25,222) (126,874)
Total assets BEHE 149,670 287,659 314,095 434,278 598,427
Total liabilities BERE 145,272 149,010 121,031 137,987 271,754
Tofal equity Bam B 4,398 138,649 193,064 206,291 326,673
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, in the opinion of the direcfors, the Company
do not have any distributable reserves (31 December 2022: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2023.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company does not
have any share option scheme.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up fo the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton (Vice Chairman)
Mr. leung Alex

Ms. Lo Ming Wan

Mr. Tse Chi Keung

Mr. Yuan Huixia

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lai Hok Lim

M. Lien Wai Hung

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company's Arficles, the Directors
retiring by rotation at the forthcoming AGM are Mr. Lleung Alex, Mr. Lai
Hok Lim and Mr. lien Wai Hung. They will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Biographical defails of Directors and senior management are sef out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. lei Hong Wai, aged 55, has over 20 years of extensive
experience in corporate management, investment and business
development. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. He
also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. lei
is also a director of Eternity Finance Group Llimited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Lei is currently the chairman of the
board of direcfors and an executive direcfor of Eternity Investment Limited
["Eternity”), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) under stock code: 764. In
2002, Mr. lei was a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Llimited, which promotes interaction amongst its members
which are listed companies in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of

China.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, aged 58, has over 30 years of
experience in the area of corporate finance and securities industries. He
holds a Master Degree in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. Mr. Cheung is also a director of
Eternity Finance Group Llimited, the substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is currently the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited ("Global Mastermind”| (stock code: 8063), a company listed on
GEM operated by the Stock Exchange and an executive director of
Eremnity. Mr. Cheung was an executive director of the Company during

the period from 11 October 2016 to 16 December 2016.
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Mr. leung Alex, aged 45, obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree
from the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000. Mr.
leung had worked in two infernational accounting firms from December
2000 to February 2012. He is a fellow member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia. He
has more than 20 vyears of experience in auditing, accounting and

corporate management as well as in the field of corporate finance,
mergers and acquisition matters, financial and accounting management,
corporate governance and compliance affairs. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. leung was an
executive director of Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under sfock code: 1466
during the period from 11 April 2016 o 30 August 2023.

Ms. lo Ming Wan, aged 38, obtained her Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries). She has over 15 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, company secrefarial matters and financial
management.

Mr. Tse Chi Keung, aged 42, obtained his Bachelor Degree of
Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
has more than 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management gained from certain senior positions in an
infernational accounting firm in Hong Kong and a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. He also holds
direcforships in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yuan Huixia, aged 43, has been admitted as a practicing solicitor
in the People’s Republic of China and has over 16 years of extensive
experience in corporate management, investment, legal affairs and
business development. He holds a Doctorate Degree in law, a Master
Degree in law and a Bachelor Degree in Law from the Southwest
University of Political Science and law in the People's Republic of
China.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 59, is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Cerfified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, respectively. He has over 30 years
of experience in auditing, financial management, mergers and
acquisitions gained from certain senior finance related positions in an
infernational accounting firm in Hong Kong, companies listed in Hong
Kong and a company listed in the United States of America. He is
currently a Practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Huanxi Media
Group Llimited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange under stock code: 1003) and Eternity.

Mr. Lai Hok Lim, aged 65, has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1989. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree and holds a Bachelor of Arts (Law) Degree from
the University of Sussex in the United Kingdom and a Bachelor of Law
Degree from Beijing University in the PRC. Mr. Lai is also an
independent non-executive director of Global Mastermind.

Mr. Llien Wai Hung, aged 60, has been a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1997. Mr. lien was also the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange under sfock code:
8130, during the period from 15 September 2010 to 31 July 2018
and 27 April 2010 1o 31 July 2018, respectively.
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Company Secretary
Ms. Lo Ming Wan, aged 38, obtained her Bachelor of Business

Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries). She has over 15 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, company secrefarial matters and financial
management.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Executive Directors have enfered info a service agreement with the
Company for an inifial term of three year commencing from the date of
their first appointment and also subject to the general requirement of
retirement by rofafion and re<election at each annual general meeting of
the Company under the Articles of Association. The service agreement
shall continue unless terminated by either party by giving a written
notice. Under the agreement, the Executive Directors will receive an
annual fee.

Apoart from the above, none of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant fo the Articles, every Director shall be entifled fo be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
damages, expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in the execution of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against Directors of the Group.
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DIRECTOR’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which Director of the Company and the
Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Year or at any fime
during the Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman and
executive director of the Company) and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
(Vice Chairman and executive director of the Company) have interest in
approximately 25.99% and 15.29%, respectively, of the issued share
capital of Eternity Investment Limited (stock code: 764, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange engaging in sale of
financial assets, property investment, money lending, design and sale of
jewelry products and operation of a golf course in the PRC, through
themselves and their beneficial interests in Twin Success Internafional
Limited. In addition, Mr. lei Hong Wai is the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton is
an executive director of Eternity Investment Limited. Therefore, Eternity
Investment Limited competes with the Group’s money lending business
and investment in financial instruments business.

As at 31 December 2023, save as mentioned above, the Directors
were not aware of any business or interest of each Director,
management shareholder and their respective associate, that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interest which any such person have or may have with the Group.

56 China Healthwise Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023

EERBEAQARBUBEEEZRS
ZEREHZERER

BEAEAEEEE AR EME AR KE R
BRARARETEING  BERARRZEERESZZH
BETEERIAERRAEARBIEARS  ZH
REH MNBEFERIBEFEEMERDA

EENBRER P 2EDS

RAREBE  THERLEE (RAREFERAT
EF)RRBELSE(RARIEIEREERITES)
% 3@ 1% {8 A K B Twin Success International Limited

EmiEm) A XKERKEIEEER AR (—
MREZAERLEM AR BRHDRIRE : 764)
ZEBTRARYNESZ - THENLNERRA
DZTREE - N Em  ZATNEHECREE
YZERE  WE- R REEREERREFE
KEFREABIGHWETR - I THEEERK
BELAEDNAKERBIEEEGRARIZEES
FERINTESRATES - AL - KEFREER
EERAABAEBEREXBRIRESM T AZE
BB EFEF o

R-B-_=F+-"A=+—HB Kta&s) &
FVESERES BEEERREREZBZH
BATHA T EAEEXEE A BB
FrRBIER  TIABEMZFALTEAE
BlFAER A FEEMEBMEER -



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2023, the interests of the directors and the chief
execufive and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register mainfained by the Company pursuant fo Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified fo
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company

EERETRTHRAEBRKRS - AEKRS
ka2 g

RZBZ=ZFF+_A=1t—8 BEQARES
FRBEEPIEIS21GFE 2 ELMAMLE - 3
BARRIRBRARE EMETAESETES
RPZEETHMERA EFERETBTHAR
REEZBMBEALTRANRE MR A®R 2 KD
RN RESTHEE 2RO T

ARFRABREESRET-BAIEERZ
iy

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
BEZEHIT MBERRIECHT

EEpE E7) EERAE RAB DL
Mr. Llei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 56,663,636 7.35%

FHEREE EHBERA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations at 31 December 2023.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

FERR

At 31 December 2023, the register of substantial shareholders A=

maintained by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the Securifies
and Futures Ordinance shows that the following shareholders had
nofified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of

the Company.

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of (a)

the Company

E=F+_A=t—H ARAREES
LHEGRIEIBHEFEZTERRELME
R NIBRREREEARARRERTRAZAH
BmAMEARRE -

-

AAREBREESHE-EAEER
ZHR

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company

FEZERIT (AR FERT

RREE 8% HEEREE RABDE

Eternity Finance Group Limited Beneficial owner 169,042,824 21.94%
KIEEMBEEAR AR ERBEAA

Riche (BVI) Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 169,042,824 21.94%

R LBk
Eternity Investment Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 169,042,824 21.94%

KIERIRERR QA

Notes:

RELEERS

These Shares were registered in the name of Eternity Finance Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Riche (BVI) Limited, which in turn is

wholly-owned by Efernity Invesiments Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 764.
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Name of shareholder Capacity

bonds held underlyihg‘ores' -
BEZTRER

BRERE 5% BEHEE ARG EE

Heng Tai Finance Limited Beneficial owner 190,263,157 190,263,157
E=EA A

Heng Tai Consumables Group Limited  Inferest in a controlled corporation 190,263,157 190,263,157

TREEMEEBRAR XA E R S

Notes: [

These convertible bonds were registered in the name of Heng Tai Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heng Tai Consumables Group
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange under sfock code: 197.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation having an inferest or short
position in shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporation(s) which would require to be recorded in the
register required fo be kept by the Company pursuant fo section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding balance of the loan made
by the Group to the following borrowers, all are independent third party
customers, which exceeds 8% under the assets ratio defined under Rule
14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

BELETRAE13 I3MEEHKE

RECB_=F+_HA=+—8 ARFARATIE
RA (R BRBLE="EP)EHERZAKE
BHRE - MxEHRBBE EMARE 14.0701) &
IREEELRZADZN

Gross Allowance Details refers
Interest rate carrying for ECL  Net carrying to the announcement
Borrower per annum amounts recognised amounts of the Company dated
MERR
RMEEER RAERT T3 HE#Z
[CE/UN FR R MEREE FRZIBE R AREE DEFMEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTT THETT TATT
Yuen Hoi Po 8% 60,828 (60,828 - 4 July 2018 and 8 July 2020
RiBR “E-NAFLtAmOBER
—F-_FTFtANH
He Jianmin 12% 67,865 (67,865) = 3 October 2019
R —E-NAFTHA=H
Chan Koon Wa 9% 52,577 (52,577) - 6 December 2020
PR T 2= —E-TF+ZANA

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS * INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

The following change was made to the information of the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up fo the date of this
report:

On 30 August 2023, Mr. Lleung Alex refired as an executive director of
Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 1466).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

In the event that the Company issues, otherwise than pursuant fo the Old
Scheme and the Scheme, for cash consideration of any new shares or
securities (including options and warrants) in the Company convertible
into ordinary shares (the "New lIssue Securities”), the holders of the
Company's preference shares (the “Preference Shares”) are entfitled to
subscribe, or procure subscribers to subscribe, for all or part of the New
Issue Securities. Any New lIssue Securities not subscribed for by the
holders of Preference Shares may be subscribed for by the holders of
ordinary shares in the Company upon ferms and conditions no more
favourable than those offered to the holder of Preference Shares.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the contracts of service with the Directors or any persons
engaged in the full-time employment of the Group, no confracts
concering the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered info or exisfed
during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases atiributable to the Group's
largest customers and suppliers are as follows:

EEEHN
EAFER  ARRFEEFINASEETE

BTEZENALMRT ZRBEEOIN  BER
AEBEZBEIEMNEEND XK ZEERITK
RIVHBRFREEMAH -

IREFRHER

AEESAEFPMMERMAEZHEERRERD
b

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
S BH=
—EC-=HF ===
+t=A=+—H +t-—A=+—H
LLFE HFE
% %
— the largest customer —&AEF 3 3
— five largest customers combined — AREF AR 7 Q
— the largest supplier — RAHER 19 23
— five largest suppliers combined — ARHERAE 62 65

No Direcfors or their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and no
shareholders (which fo the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed (together with the management and
external auditor) the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2023.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant fo Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-executive Direcfors are independent.

CHANGE OF AUDITORS

BDO Llimited has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 23 July 2020. HIB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been
appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 27 July 2020
fo fill the casual vacancy.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited shall refire in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company will be
proposed af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Company is committed to maintaining, and has maintained good
relationships with, its employees, customers and suppliers with a view to
fostering better mutual understanding and/or a sense of belonging
towards the Company. This is conducive to implementing the Group's
strategies and business objectives, as well as the Group’s business
development and sustainability in the long term.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporation, the Company is committed fo profecting
the environment in the areas where we operate. To ensure our business
development and sustainability, the Company endeavors to comply with
the laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and fo
adopt effective measures fo achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and wastfe reduction.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors as at the lafest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report, the public float of the shares of the
Company is sufficient to meef the minimum level as prescribed in the
Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng limited as audifors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance principles and practice are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 47 of this
Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board
China Healthwise Holdings Limited

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and executive Director

26 March 2024
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Independent Auditors’ Report
I BT RE

HLB) B #7 & @ ¥ % o 4 m o 4

HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA HEALTHWISE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 70 to 212,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as af 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes fo the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Audiitors” Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw affention to note 3 in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$ 134,558,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and, as of that date, the Group
had net current liabilities of HK$3,298,000. These conditions indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

64 China Healthwise Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023

31/F Gloucester Tower &

The landmark IR

11 Pedder Street SITH115%

Central BEHES

Hong Kong ERERTITAE
3112

BHEEREREERBRATRR
(RASHBIME BRI A)

=
=

FEECERBE/OR212EMEII 2 EERER
FEERERAR ([EAR]) REKEB AR (5HE
RIEEE]) 2HREEUBHRER  BER_T_=
F+-A=+T—RZEAMBRRK  BEZH
TFEzGeEakEb2EEER Keka
HEHMRNGARERERN NGRS M BERKRM
i BREARSABEREMMEMHAES -

BERR HEVBHRRCREFESHMAE
([BEEFMAS)) BhzEEMBHREER
([BEMBRELIDEEMAFHRRT =T
SER_ZT_=F+_A=+T—HZEAHHBNK
MREBEZALFEZGEVBRARGER
ERE WEERBFEBRAGIZEREREZR

RRzER

EEERBEEEGHMASRMZEEEHER
([BEEREL ] ETER BFURFEAX
BE2EEEARE [REELBZEE P RE
AEEZAT] —fME— PR RIEFE G
Bh A& Rz [ FHE A& A (TR -

EEBHUR BEEE YEETTRPZEME
REME -BFHE BSMEGZIERRERER
REEEWREFZBRIEHER -

FRBEKECEATHRERE

EREISRCMBHRRMES EhEiEE—
E_=Ft+-_A=+—BLFE BEEEHEXL
BEFE-E=TOAATEENTEL Kk#
EZR - EREERPEABFEO/=ZA TN
BATAET ZERARREFEEANEERE
® BEREERSELEZENFEEARE -BF
ZRERAB UL FRELEFT



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
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determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters fo

be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

HEEZER

Expected credit losses ( “ECL") assessment on loan
receivables

BRERzBARFESRR (RABEEER FMH

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

F2HR AP BHRME23 -

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of loan
receivables was approximately HK$17,095,000.
Accumulated allowance for ECL of approximately
HK$294,218,000 was provided for loan receivables.

RIZB_=F+-_A=+—RH EBEEXEREELS
—TEtBEZEABETEL ERERENRREANEE
EREFABRBH _BATHA-+-—B8N\TET-

During the year ended 31 December 2023, allowance for
ECL of approximately HK$ 107,469,000 was recognised
for loan receivables.
BE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE ERERER
REMEEBERBN BT LR+ R"EATET -

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information including historical and forward-looking
information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort for this purpose.

REHREEH - EEEFEEERRELAREM - &
SEZEELERENHNEERALB N TESZE
BRAAXFHZEEER  BEBERAELEER

We identified ECL assessments on loan receivables as a key
audit matter due to use of significant judgement and
estimates.
EEBRRER 2 RAGEBENGIN SERERZS
B REARE S EAERHE MG -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREERERAZAA

Our procedures in relation fo management’s ECL assessment on
loan receivables included but not limited to:
EENEEBHBRRERFL 2 BHEEBRNGETZ
BEFEEETRR)

Understanding the credit control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures on periodic review
of loan receivables and ECL assessment on loan
receivables;

THREBEBMETEEELRERRF BREBHEEBKER
REWERz RRGEEBEN G2 EPEHRERF

Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy of aging
profile of loan receivables to the underlying agreements;

3B IR B AR R 19 AR B R M B SRR e 2 R RN

Checking, on a sample basis, the subsequent setlement of
loan receivables to bank receipts; and

MBS EREIRITYR 2 HIREE -

Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL provision
methodology, examining the key dafa inputs on a sample
basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the ECL.
AEEREEFEREETERTES MEMRBRE A
BBEUFEERRER TR YERANETRMSE
EEBEMARRK  BREELMATEIEER -

We found that the management judgement and estimates used
in ECL assessment on loan receivables were supported by
available evidences.

EERE BEREEREBUERTLEREEBFREL ZA
i K% 51 & AT RIS 48 S0 HF o
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I BT RE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors'’
report thereon [the “Other Information”).

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to confinue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporfing process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statfements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and mainfain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e |denfify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of inferal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of infernal confrol relevant to the audit in
order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's infernal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the direcfors.

gﬁ%ﬁ#&%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability fo
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncerfainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report fo the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group fo
cease fo confinue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. VWe are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. VWe describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should nof be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected fo outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Cerfificate Number: PO5029

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024

RBOMREBERREMBRRAREZ
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEERREMBEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —EE &=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET THT
Revenue A e} 146,317 142,058
Cost of sales SHE A (86,023) (88,788)
Cross profit ESY 60,294 53,270
Other income, gains and losses, net HEalg A - Wz R EE - FRE 7 (10,167) (10,096)
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDHZ H (27,874) (28,542)
General and administrative expenses —RITHE A (37,529) (38,330)
Finance costs BB KA Q (8,993) (7,297)
Impairment loss under expected RHREEBERREET
credit loss model REEE (107,469) (24,784)
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets FREEERERERE 16 (321) (622)
Loss before income tax FRPTIS TR E 1R 8 (132,059) (56,401)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fri8Hi (BY), e 10 (2,499) 2,127
Loss for the year FAEIE (134,558 (54,274)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), HNRBEEEMEEKE (FE)
net of tax
Item that may be reclassified subsequently — B 1& Al p¢ & E #7772 2
to profit or loss: HEmsEE -
Exchange differences arising from BREBINEBEELZ
translation of foreign operations b 5, RR 307 (141)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) FRMBRRIARE M EE
for the year, nef of tax Wi (BE) 307 (141)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZHERERE (134,251) (54,415
Loss for the year attributable to RRATHEE NEGFRNER
owners of the Company (134,558 (54,274)
Total comprehensive loss affributable to AAFIHEANEGEEEBEERE
owners of the Company (134,251) (54,415)
Loss per share aftributable to owners of KARHAE ANEEEREBE
the Company
— Basic and diluted — BEARREE (17.46) (7.04)
12 cents 1l cents &1Ll
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As at 31 December 2023

RZE-_=F+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—EB-=F T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB RFE 15 482 676
Rightof-use assets FREEE 16 7,502 6,077
Financial assets at fair value through BRAVEFABRZEREE
profit or loss 20 559 1,143
Deferred fax assets FEFR T & 27 = 2,697
Loan receivables ERE R 23 1,472 2,049
10,015 12,642
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 56,023 55,121
Trade and other receivables, deposits e B 5 B 3 e B FE MR IR
and prepayments ®re MANKIE 22 13,727 14,721
Loan receivables FEUNE TR 23 15,623 132,002
Tax recoverable A B F IR - 153
Financial assets at fair value through RATVESABRZEREE
profit or loss 20 39,861 56,170
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREeEFEY 24 14,421 16,850
139,655 275,017
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables and AT B 5 AR R B HoAth 5 5K IR
accrued charges FEAEA 25 33,427 35,965
lease liabilities HEEE 16 5,790 4,752
Borrowings BE 26 28,722 31,264
Tax payable FESTHIA 2,775 2,775
Convertible loan notes ABREREE 34 72,239 -
142,953 74,756
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (AE) EEFE (3,298) 200,261
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERS 6,717 212,903
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBIRRER

As at 31 December 2023

R-ZZE—_=F+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=F == — e
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET TABT

Non-current liabilities ERBEMS
lease liabilities HESE 16 2,149 2,843
Convertible loan notes AR ERER 34 - 71,043
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIEA & 27 170 368
2,319 74,254
Net assets BEEFE 4,398 138,649

EQUITY =

Share capital & A 28 7,705 7,705
Reserves s (3,307) 130,944
Total equity mRES 4,398 138,649

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2024 and are signed on ifs

behalf by:

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Lei Hong Wai
i

Director

EF
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Retained

Convertible Exchange profits/
Share Share  loan notes — fluctuation  (accumulated
capital premium  equity reserve reserve losses) Total
D13
EXEE- EXKE {RERM/
RA R D5 E BERE e (RIABR) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT
(Nofe 28)
GEVL)
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_5—Ff—H 7,705 25,675 19,835 10,893 128,956 193,064
Exchange differences arising on BEBIEBEEZELER
franslation of foreign operations = = = (141) = (141)
Loss for the year FAEHE = = = = (54,274) (54,274)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERNEABELESE - - - (141) (54,274) (54,415)
Deregistration of a subsidiary HH-—EHEAR - - - (11,228) 11,228 -
At 31 December 2022 and RZZZZ$+-A=+—-H
1 January 2023 k=F==5—-R—H 7,705 25,675 19,835 (476) 85,910 138,649
Exchange differences arising on BEBIEBELZELER
franslation of foreign operations = = = 307 = 307
Loss for the year FRER = = - - (134,558 (134,558
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEAFELESE = - - 307 (134,558) (134,251)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-A=+—H 7,705 25,675 19,835 (169) (48,648) 4,398

Nature and purpose of reserves are disclosed in Note 30 fo the

consolidated financial statements.

2 IEE KB R ERE IS MRAR M 30 B EE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZ—ZE-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F == — e
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET THT
Operating activities RERK
Loss before income tax BREFS TR EE (132,059 (56,401)
Adjustments for: A TIEE A
Inferest expenses b= 9 8,993 7,297
Depreciation of property, ME - WERRETE
plant and equipment 15 383 184
Depreciation of rightof-use assets ERESERE 16 5,232 3,120
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets EAEEERERR 16 321 622
Impairment loss on loan receivables, net  EUREFREEIEFRE 23 107,469 24,784
Gain on modification of BRI AR E RS 2 W
convertible loan notes 7 = (2,459)
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid- 19 fHEATA 2R % 7 = (160)
Loss on written off of property, WY - BE RREEE
plant and equipment 7 2 1
Fair value loss on financial assets BAVEFABEZCREE
at fair value Through proﬁf or loss, net 2 NVEREFE 7 10,344 15,325
Operating cash flows before working LEEREHRICKEHERE
capital changes 685 (7,687)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (Em), wmd (902) 5,592
Decrease/increase) in trade and other FEURE 5 BR 51 K EL Ath B UROE -
receivables, deposits and prepayments Be RENFERD,/(#5n) 994 (2,878)
Decrease/increase) in loan receivables FEW EZ O L), /180 9,487 (20,263)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FEHE 5 R R K EL A B {5 FRIE
other payables and accrued charges FEETB R CAd) 15N (2,474) 10,231
Decrease/|increase) in financial assets at IR AFEFFAEBRZ
fair value through profit or loss SEMEERD, (M) 6,549 (13,334)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations  #& & %% 18,/ (FTA) 2 B¢ 14,339 (28,339)
Income tax refunded REIFTEH 153 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBFRE (A2
operating activities HEFEE 14,492 (28,339)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023  #;

E=FE==F=H=1 HIEEE

2023 2022
—E-=% e
Nofes HK$’000 HK$'000
Liks3 FHERT TET
Investing activities REES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE W% « BRE &% 15 (191) (631)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFAZRESFHE (191) (631)
Financing activities MEEE
Inferest paid BASFIE 35 (7,861) (6,971)
New borrowings e 35 1,000 19,228
Repayment of borrowings EEEXK 35 (3,542) =
Repayment of principal portion of EBEHERABZAT D
lease liabilities 35 (6,634) (6,303
Net cash (used in)/generated from mMEER (FTA) e
financing activities ZEE R (17,037) 5,954
Net decrease in cash and RERREEEY
cash equivalents WA FEE (2,736) 23,016)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  JMEE R 8 &)~ §/ & 307 (141)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHZRERAEEEY
the beginning of the year 16,850 40,007
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZRERAESEEY
the end of the year 14,421 16,850
Represented by: 15
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEED 24 14,421 16,850
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

76

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS
China Healthwise Holdings Limited Bl %5 & i BR {2 AR B BR A )

(the "Company”] is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. lts shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands, and the
principal place of business of the Company is at Unit 1209, Shun
Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and principally
engaged in investment in financial instruments. lts subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the "Group”) are
principally engaged in sale of Chinese health products, money
lending business and investment in financial instruments.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars {"HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

Details of the substantial shareholders of the Company are

disclosed in the section headed “Subsfantial Shareholders” in the
Report of the Directors of the annual report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

(a)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"| for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or affer 1 January 2023 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statfements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts
2020 and February 2022

Amendments to HKERS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments fo HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

Infernational Tax Reform —

Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision(s) of
the Committee of the International Accounting Standards
Board (the "Committee”).

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and the Committee's agenda
decision(s) in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures sef out in
these consolidated financial statements.

2. EREBMBHEER (EFBME
HEEQ BT A

(a)

REAFEBFHERZEBU KR
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F1754B7TA)
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EHEN
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B

EESHENE 12 BEREHENE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

78

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

(a)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

Change in accounting policy as a result of application of
the HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of
the abolition of the Mandatory Provident Fund — Long
Service Payment offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong

In June 2022, the Govermnment of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region ("Government”) gazetted the Hong
Kong Employment and Retirement Schemes legislation
[Offsetting Arrangement] (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
("Amendment Ordinance”), which will come into effect from
1 May 2025 (“Transition Date”). Once the Amendment
Ordinance takes effect, an employer can no longer use any
of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
contributions to mandatory provident fund ("MPF”) scheme
fo reduce the long service payment (“LSP") in respect of an
employee’s service from the Transition Date (the abolition of
the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect of
the service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately before
the Transition Date and the years of service up fo that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published the captioned
accounting guidance relating to the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism. In particular, the guidance indicates
that entities may account for the accrued benefits derived
from mandatory MPF confributions that are expected fo be
used fo reduce the LSP payable to an employee as deemed
confributions by that employee towards the LSP. To better
reflect the substance of the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism, the Group has applied the above HKICPA
guidance and changed its accounting policy in connection

with its LSP liability.

The change in accounting policy in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
fo HKFRSs and inferprefation that have been issued but are
not yef effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!

Amendments fo HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?
and HKFRS 7
Amendments fo HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

Hong Kong Inferprefation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements

(Revised) — Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that contains

a Repayment on Demand Clause?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer a date to
be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January
2024.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025.

The directors anficipate that the application of all amendments
to HKFRSs and inferpretation will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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80

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
fo influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), which are measured at fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for good and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an assef or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group fakes info account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability af the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing fransactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 leases, and
measurements that have some similarities fo fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assefs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised info level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs fo the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in ifs entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inpufs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

® level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

Going concern

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred a
net loss of approximately HK$ 134,558,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023 and, as of that date, the Group had net
current liabilities of HK$ approximately HK$3,298,000.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity, operating
performance of the Group, and are of the opinion that the cash
flow generated from operating activities of the Group will be able
fo meet the funding needs of operations and repay the outstanding
interest bearing borrowings and liabiliies. In order to improve the
Group's financial position, the directors of the Company have
been implementing various measures as follows:

taking active measures to collect loan receivables to
improve operating cash flows and its financial position;

ii. in the process of negotiating with the lender 1o renew and
extend the existing convertible loan notes with outstanding
principal amount of approximately HK$72,300,000 upon
its maturity on 10 October 2024. In the opinion of
directors, the renewal of the convertible loan notes with the
lender is probable;
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82

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT (Continved)

Going concern (Continved)

iii.  reviewing its invesiments and acfively considering tfo realise
certain financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss, in
order to enhance the cash flow position of the Group
whenever it is necessary; and

iv.  implementing an active cost-saving measures to control
administrative costs through various ways to improve
operating cash flows at a level sufficient to finance the
working capifal requirements of the Group.

The directors of the Company have carried out detail review on
the Group's cash flow projections prepared by management. The
cash flow projections cover a period of not less than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. In preparing the cash
flow forecast, the directors have considered historical cash
requirements of the Group as well as other key facfors, including
the availability of the loan finance which may impact the
operations of the Group during the next twelve-month period. They
are of the opinion that, taking info account the above-mentioned
plans and measures, the Group would have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
it is appropriafe fo prepare the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 on a going concern
basis. Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements to adjust the value of the Group's assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities
as current assefs and liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and ifs subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from ifs
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power fo affect its refurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Croup loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases fo control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating fo fransactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

84

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration fest

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
fest, on a transaction- by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of acfivifies
and assefs is not a business. The concentration fest is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrafed in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assefs under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assefs, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred fax liabilities.
If the concentration fest is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assefs acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets or financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assefs and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a fransaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrafed set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a subsfantive process that together
significantly contribute fo the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered subsfantive if they are
critical fo the ability fo continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills,
knowledge, or experience fo perform the related processes
or they significantly confribute to the ability to continue
producing outputs and are considered unique or scarce or
cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay
in the ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration fransferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisitiondate fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must
meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting |(the
"Conceptual Framework”) except for fransactions and events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Confingent Assefs or HK(IFRICHnt 21 Levies,
in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC}Hnt 21
instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Confingent assets are nof recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

86

(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continuved)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assefs acquired and

the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related fo share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group enfered info fo
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
at the acquisition date [see the accounting policy
below);

assets [or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinved Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard: and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition dafe, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of
low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured af the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable ferms of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration fransferred, the amount of any non-controlling
inferess in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity inferest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the idenfifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed at acquisition date. If, affer re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-confrolling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders fo a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable nef assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a fransaction-by-
fransaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
refrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date] about facts and
circumsfances that existed at the acquisition date.

G ABTSmRME
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

88

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continuved)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and ifs
subsequent seftlement is accounted for within equity.
Confingent consideration that is classified as an asset or o
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquire is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains confrol), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity inferest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, fo reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c]

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as esfablished at the dafe of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units ("CGU") (or
groups of CGUs| that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first fo reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs|.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the atfributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the
amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed
of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)

refained.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

90

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:
Lleasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 5-20 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-5 years
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or refirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assef and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAXEBEER (&)
(Continued)

(e)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
fime in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Croup assesses whether a confract is or confains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration fo components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or nonlease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the confract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-ease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption fo leases that have a lease ferm of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assefs. lease payments on shortterm
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a sfraightline basis or another systematic basis
over the lease ferm.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

92

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Rightofuse assets

The cost of rightof-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct cosfs incurred by the Group; and

®  an estimate of cosfs to be incurred by the Group in

dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease other than adjustiments fo
lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assefs are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabiliies other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-
related rent concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.

Rightof-use assefs in which the Group is reasonably certain
fo obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straightline basis over the
shorter of ifs estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Llease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rafe, initially measured using the index or rafe as at
the commencement date;

e amounts expected fo be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
friggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accrefion and lease payments
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4.

94

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

e) Leases [Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Llease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related rightofuse assets)
whenever:

e the lease ferm has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rafe at the dafe of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Llease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right fo use one or more underlying assets;

and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriatfe
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate af the effective date
of the medification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains one or more
additional lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component. The associated non-lease components
are included in the respective lease components.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

96

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a resulf of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the
Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure the
lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease payments
using the unchanged discount rate and makes a
corresponding adjustment fo the related right-of-use assets. A
lease modification is required by inferest rate benchmark
reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

e the modification is necessary as a direct consequence
of inferest rate benchmark reform; and

e the new basis for defermining the lease payments is

economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the
basis immediately preceding the modification).
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

e there is no substantive change fo other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted 1o reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

98

(f)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised af their
fair value af the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assefs acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as infangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried af cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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G AMERRNS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(9)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
ofuse assefs and intangible assets other than goodwill with
finite useful lives to defermine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order fo determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
fest for impairment af least annually, and whenever there is
an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assefs are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is defermined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the

relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-fax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset [or a CGU] for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(9)

100

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated fo be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced fo its recoverable
amount. For corporate assefs or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis fo a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated fo
that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a proTata basis based on the carmying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
fo the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assef (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of ifs recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
defermined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs| in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assefs are recognised and derecognised
on a frade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenve from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly affributable fo
the acquisition or issue of financial assefs and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assefs or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly affributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilifies af
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocafing inferest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
fransaction cosfs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriafe, a shorfer period, to the net carrying
amount on inifial recognition.

Inferest income which is derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

102

(h)

Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial assef is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual ferms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principo| amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

e the financial assef is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the confractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination fo which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAXEBEER (&)
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattem of
shortterm profittaking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and inferest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assefts measured subsequently af
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated creditimpaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rafe to the gross carrying amount of a financial
assef, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become creditimpaired. For financial assefs that have
subsequently become creditimpaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rafe fo the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the creditimpaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
creditimpaired, inferest income is recognised by applying
the effective inferest rate o the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the defermination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAESHBEER (&)
(Continued)

(h)

104

Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assefs that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assefs at FVTPL are measured at fair value af the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assefs

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including frade and
other receivables, deposits, loan receivables and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
period fo reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
12-month ECL ("1

the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from

instrument. In contrast, 2m ECL") represents

default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific o the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for frade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifefime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

[i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as af the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forwardHooking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
(h)

106

Financial instruments (Confinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken info
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deferioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if ovoi|ob|e]
or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected fo cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability fo meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deferioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used fo identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate fo ensure that the criteria are capable of
idenfifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

108

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial assef is creditrimpaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating fo the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

® it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an acfive market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that @
financial asset is creditimpaired when it is more than
Q0 days past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Writeoff policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assefs
writien off may sfill be subject to enforcement acfivities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking info
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
consfitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix
taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
confractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the confract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(h)

110

Financial instruments (Confinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debfors; and
e  External credif ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue fo
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
inferest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carying amount, with the exception of frade and
other receivables and loan receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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G ABTSmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAXEBEER (&)
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition,/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial assef only when the
contractual rights fo the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset fo another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the assef's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profif or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised ferms
result in a substantial modification from original ferms taking
info account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if
the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial asset,
affer reducing gross carrying amount that has been written

off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified confractual cash flows discounted at
the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial assets and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit
or loss at the date of modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

112

(h)

Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity insfrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
cosfs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity insfruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or af
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
lease liabilities, borrowings and debt element of convertible
loan notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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G ABTSmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EAXEBEER (&)
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible loan notes

The component parfs of the convertible loan notes are
classified separately as financial liability and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity insfruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
lincluding any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is defermined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, nef of income fax effects,
and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium account. Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity dafe of the convertible note, the
balance recognised in equity will remain in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion fo the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly fo equity. Transaction cosfs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

114

Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilifies

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking info
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is af
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
The above said fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are
recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment.
The exchange or modification is considered as non-
substantial modification when such difference is less than 10
per cent.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition,/modlification of financial liabilities
(Continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted af
the financial liabilities’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial liability is recognised in
profit or loss at the dafe of modification.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are inifially recognised atf cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condifion. Cost is calculated using the firstin first out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the esfimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary fo
make the sale. Cosfs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly affributable to the sale and non-
incremental cosfs which the Group must incur to make the
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(i)

(k)

116

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

[a)  cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulafory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

[b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
shortterm cash commitments rather than for investment
or other purposes.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
fransferred fo the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service [or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over fime by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the custfomer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer confrols as the Group performs;
or

,
e the Group's performance does not create an asset

with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed fo date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(K

Revenue recognition (Continved)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract assef represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
fransfer goods or services fo a cusfomer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

A confract asset and a contract liability relating fo the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Further defails of the Group's revenue recognition policies
are as follows:

(i) Sales of Chinese health products

Revenue from sales of Chinese health products is
recognised at a point in time when confrol of the
goods is transferred, being delivery of the goods to
the customers.

(i) Inferest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal oufstanding af the applicable interest rate.
(i) Sales of investment in financial instruments

Revenue from investment in financial instruments
includes realised fair value gains or losses on frading
investment on a trade date basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h

118

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense..

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rafes
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and as the time of the
fransaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabiliies are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised fo the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed af
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred fax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is setfled or the asset is realised, based on tox rates
land tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted af the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assefs and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, fo recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilifies.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
fransactions in which the Group recognises the rightof-use
assefs and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
defermines whether the tax deductions are aftributable to the
rightof-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
affributable to the lease liabiliies, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements fo the lease liabilities, and the related
assets separafely. The Group recognises a deferred tax
asset related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a
deferred fax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate fo items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(m)

120

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entfity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency [i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the fransactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-
monefary ifem is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or
loss. VWhen a fair value gain or loss on a non-monefary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of hisforical cost in a foreign currency are
not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(m)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are franslated info the presentation currency of
the Group |i.e. HK$) at the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of
fransactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
inferest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the refained interest becomes
a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
affributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are freated as assefs and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

122

(n) Employee benefits

(1)

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them fo the
contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans including
the LSP under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
the cost of providing benefits is defermined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out af he end of each annual reporting
period. In determining the present value of the
Group's defined benefit obligations and the related
current service cost and, where applicable, past
service cost, the Group affributes benefit to periods of
service under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if
an employee’s service in later years will lead to a
materially higher level of benefit than earlier years, the
Group aftributes the benefit on a straightline basis
from:

(o) the date when service by the employee first
leads to benefits under the plan (whether or not
the benefits are conditional on further service)
until

(b)  the date when further service by the employee
will lead to no material amount of further
benefits under the plan, other than from further
salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes fo the asset ceiling [if
applicable) and the return on plan assefs (excluding
interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income s reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be
reclassified fo profit or loss.
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- For the year ended 31

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

Retirement benefit cost (Continued)

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

O service cost (including current service cost, past
service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

° nef inferest expense or income; and
° remeasurement

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited fo the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plans or reductions in future contributions to
the plans.

Discrefionary confributions made by employees or
third parties reduce service cost upon payment of
these contributions fo the plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
(n)

124

Employee benefits (Continued)

(1)

Retirement benefit cost (Continued)

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there
will be contributions from employees or third parties,
the accounting depends on whether the confributions
are linked to service, as follows:

° If the contributions are not linked to services (for
example confributions are required to reduce a
deficit arising from losses on plan assefs or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
or assef.

e If contributions are linked to services, they
reduce service costs. For the amount of
confribution that is dependent on the number of
years of service, the Group reduces service cost
by attributing the contributions fo periods of
service using the affribution method required by

HKAS 19 paragraph 70 for the gross benefits.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected fo be offset as
a deemed employee confribution towards the LSP
obligation in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is
measure on a net basis. The estimated amount of
future benefit is defermined after deducting the
negative service cost arising from the accrued benefits
derived from the Group's MPF confributions that have
been vested with employees, which are deemed fo
be contributions from the relevant employees.
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- For the year ended 31

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(n)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits| that are expected to
be seffled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the period when the
employees render the related service.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdrow the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
resfructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(o)

126

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted fo employees

Equity-sefiled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-seftled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking info
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straightline basis over the vesting period, based on the
Croup's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises ifs estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment fo the share option reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are sfill not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be fransferred to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions affaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchose, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred fo profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assefs.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support fo the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under "Other income, gains and
losses, net”.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive] as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required fo sefile that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(r

(s)

128

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required fo seffle the present obligation af
the end of the reporting period, faking info account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
seftle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

Contingent assets and liabilities
Contingent assets

Contingent assefs arise from unplanned or other unexpected
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits fo the Group and they are not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses
continually the development of contingent assets. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the Group recognises the asset and the related
income in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A confingent liability is a present obligation arising from
past events but is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required o sefile the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is joinily and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses confinually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. I it becomes probable that an outflow of
future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the exiremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

()} Related parties

[a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person'’s family is
related fo the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

An entity is related o the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related fo the
others);

[i)  One entfity is an associafe or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entfity is
a member);

i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;

[iv)  One entfity is a joinf venture of a third entity and
the other enfity is an associate of the third entfity;

[v]  The enfity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

130

(}  Related parties (Continued)
lb)  (Continued)

(vi]  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the enfity or is a member of key
management personne| of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity);

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or fo the Company's
parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, service
or obligations between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected fo influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed fo be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounfing estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncerfainty af the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinved)

(i)

132

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and rightofuse assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assefs are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In defermining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, partficularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the assef; and
[3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. VWhen it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset [including rightof-use assefs), the Group esfimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
assefs belong, including allocation of corporate assefs when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined at
the smallest group of cash generating unifs, for which the
relevant corporate assefs have been allocated. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates
or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounfs.

As at 31 December 2023, impairment losses of nil (2022:
nil) and HK$321,000 (2022: HK$622,000) in respect of
property, plant and equipment and rightof-use assets have
been recognised respectively. Details of the impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assefs are
disclosed in Notes 15 and 16 fo the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EASHEURETTEEM 2
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Fair valve measurement of financial instruments

As aft 31 December 2023, the Group's unlisted equity
securities amounting to HK$559,000 (2022:
HK$1,143,000) are measured at fair value with fair value
being defermined based on significant unobservable inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation fechniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating fo these factors could result in material adjustments
fo the fair value of these insfruments. Defails are sef out in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling expenses necessary fo make the sale. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle.
The directors of the Company reassess the estimations at the
end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinved)

(iv]  Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and loan
receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL on
frade receivables which are not assessed individually using
a provision matrix. The provision rafes are based on aging
of debtors as groupings of various debtors taking into
consideration the Group's historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forwardHooking information
are considered.

The Group assesses whether the probability of default on a
loan receivables or other receivables at the end of the
reporting period has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information including
historical and forward-looking information which is available
without undue cost or effort. The Group calculates ECL
allowance for loan receivables and other receivables based
on the estimated probability of default of counterparties with
similar credit ratings, with adjustment to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate.

The ECL assessment on frade and other receivables and
loan receivables involves significant management
judgements and estimates on credit risk assessment, the uses
of models and inputs in the calculation of ECL at the
reporting date. Defails of ECL assessment are disclosed in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. BWARTDMHEE

An analysis of the Group's revenue from its principal acfivities for

FARAKBEEEIEXBEEZBADMN

the year is as follows: U
2023 2022
—E-= === =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Revenue from contracts with customers REBMBREENE 1555
within the scope of HKFRS 15: BEAZEFAEHORA :
Trading of BE
— Chinese health products — PERES 129,523 128,375
Revenue from other sources: HRFEWA -
— Money lending business — MEXER 10,656 14,628
— Investment in financial instruments —RESHIA 6,138 (945)
16,794 183,683
146,317 142,058
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts ERBEZEFEHNBAZEZ5
with customers
Timing of revenue recognition from contracts REBEFELHBAZEERE
with customers
— At a point in fime — R—ERHE 129,523 128,375
Sales channels HEXRB
— Retail — 5 80,604 73,723
— Wholesale — #bE 2,809 1,010
— Direct sales event — HIEEY 34,285 41,170
— Internet — GEE 11,825 12,472
Total et 129,523 128,375
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FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

136

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operafing decision-maker (the “CODM”)
that are used fo make strafegic decisions.

The Group has three reportable and operating segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and requires different business strafegies. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the
Croup's reportable segments:

Chinese health products: sale of Chinese health products
®  Money lending business: granting loans

4 Investment in financial instruments: investing in financial
instruments

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no infersegment sales in both years.
Corporate income and expenses are not allocated to the
operafing segments as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss that is used by the CODM for assessment
of segment performance.
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6.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results

Year ended 31 December 2023

6. WARDBHRE (&)
(o) 2BERARFEE
BE_S-_=F+"A=1+—-HL#HF

E

Chinese Money  Investment

health lending in financial
products business instruments Total

) - RESHE
REm HEEY I8 At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHERT FTHERT FHERT
Revenue to external cusfomers ~ FMNEBEF U A 129,523 10,656 6,138 146,317

Segment profit/(loss) before bR TS TR AT 9 &

income tax Al (E18) 3,192 (115,859 (5,677)  (118,344)

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE_T-_—F#+-_A=+—HI#F

B

Chinese Money Investment

health lending in financial
products business  instruments Total

% RESH
R 5 A TA #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TET FET
Revenue to external customers — ZMEBE P UA 128,375 14,628 (945) 142,058

Segment profit/(loss| before B P15 T Bl 20 8D

income tax sl (E18) 1,888 [30,023) (17,748) (45,883)
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6.

138

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved) 6. BWARDBHRE (&)

(a)

Segment revenue and results (Continved) (o) DEBAREE &)
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment loss Al #REH BB E 1A (118,344) (45,883)
Gain on modification of BT AT B R 2 Was
convertible loan notes = 2,459
Unallocated finance costs R B B & p AR (5,534) (4,566)
Unallocated corporate income/|expenses) 72 BEABIMRA/ (FZ)
— Government grant — BRfbE - 72
— Staff costs — BIRKAK (5,362) (5,256)
— legal and professional fee — ARERBXER (415) (1,214)
Rokers — Hip (2,404) 2,013)
Consolidated loss before income tax MRETISTRIAR & 18 (132,059) (56,401)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

6. WARTZBERE (@)

Segment assets and liabilities THEERAH
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and NTRAEBERAHFENHMED 2 E
liabilities by reportable segment: ENBEZOMN
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Segment assets PEWEE
— Chinese health products — FRZERER 88,690 92,731
— Money lending business — PEER 17,647 137,084
— Investment in financial instruments —KEEMTHE 40,441 57,343
Segment assets DEEE 146,778 287,158
Unallocated corporate assets AP RABEE
— Cash and cash equivalents —HekReEEY 992 350
— Other (Note) — Htb (KaE) 1,900 151
Consolidated total assets REBERE 149,670 287,659
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Segment liabilities STHMEE
— Chinese health products — PERER 50,070 54,712
— Money lending business — MEXEH 1,290 1,290
— Investment in financial instruments —REeRTE 17,883 18,247
Segment liabilities nEEE 69,243 74,249
Unallocated corporate liabilities AABRARAE
— Convertible loan notes — EERERER 72,239 71,043
— Others (Note) — Bt (fat) 3,790 3,718
Consolidated total liabilities =Nk 145,272 149,010

Nofe: Other unallocated corporate assets and liabilities include
certain other receivables, deposits and prepayments, certain
other payables and accrual charges and deferred tax

liabilities.

TEEERRIERBERAR —T_=F%H

Mt Bt R D ERREERBBERES
TEMEHFOR - e RIENRE
ETHMENFALESERNU R

BEBRIARME
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. WARDB®E (&)
(c) Other segment information included in segment ) PBEERIHBEEZHMD I
results or segment assets &8
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_F-_="f+-"A=t—-HL#HF
E
Chinese Money  Investment
health lending in financial
products business instruments  Unallocated Total
hE k&
REm HEXEK ERIA AOE st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TRz TR TR TEx
Inferest expenses FERAX 2,080 - 1,380 5,533 8,993
Depreciation of property, nE  BERRERE
plant and equipment 383 - - - 383
Depreciation of rightofuse assets ~ HRBEENE 5,232 - - - 5,232
Impairment loss on rightofuse assets {2 A& Z R B E 321 - - - 321
Impairment loss on loan W E SR EREFE
receivables, net = 107,469 = = 107,469
Fair value loss on financial assets R FEFF A B
at FVTPL, net ZEREE
ZOTEERTE - - 10,344 - 10,344
Employee costs [including EEXT(BHEEEME)
directors’ remuneration) 20,215 16,842 - 5,361 42,418
Additions fo property, REDE  BERRE
plant and equipment 191 - - - 191
Additions fo rightofuse assefs REFREEE 6,978 = = = 6,978
Other segment information MERESREETH
regularly provided to CODM: REFEZEMDHEH :
Income tax expense/|credi] kMY (Ek) - 2,696 = (197) 2,499
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6.

(c]

- For the year ended 31

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved) 6. WARDHB®E (&)
Other segment information included in segment ) IBEEIIBEEZHMD I
results or segment assets (Continued) B8 (E)
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z-__F+_A=+—HILF
B
Chinese Money  Investment
healih lending in financial
products business  insfruments  Unallocated Total
I kA
RiEgm  HEXHK  ERIA AOE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TEL TEL TET THER
Inferest expenses F BRI 1,316 - 1,415 4,566 7,297
Depreciation of property, nE  BERRETE
plant and equipment 184 = = = 184
Depreciation of rightofuse assets ~ {EFIEAENE 3,120 - - - 3,120
Impairment loss on rightofuse assets 2 AR ERIERE 622 = = = 622
Impairment loss on loan ERERAESRFE
receivables, net - 24,784 - - 24,784
Fair value loss on financial assets ~ RAFEFT Az
at FVTPL, net LEREE
ZATEEREE = = 15,325 = 15,325
Employee coss (including EEXT(BHEEEME)
directors’ remuneration) 19,639 16,842 - 5,256 41,737
Additions o property, NENFE  BERR
plant and equipment 631 - - - 631
Additions o rightofuse assets REFRERE 7,535 - = = 7,535
Other segment information MERELREETH
regularly provided to CODM: REZEMDHEH :
Income tax (credit)/expense FrsR (Ke) / Bx - (2,495 - 368 (2,127)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)

(d)

()

142

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers and non-current assefs by geographical region,
according to location of operations or the location which
the products are delivered and the location of asses, is as
follows:

6. BWARDBHRE (&)

(d)

RBLEMHNERNERELLE
ERESRILED R BRAAKER
BINBEF 2 WA RIERBEEE
LI

Revenue Non-current assets (Note (i))
LON FEREBEE (BHEE (i)
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=F —F —mmeE —EC=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT FHERT FHET
Hong Kong (Nofe (i) a7 (K (i) 146,317 141,750 7,984 6,753
The People’s Republic of hEARAME
China (the “"PRC") (TE]) - 308 - =
146,317 142,058 7,984 6,753
Note: HiaE -
(i) Excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments. (i) TREREREEER SR TA -
(i) Revenue from interest income and sale of financial (i) FBWMAREESMT A ZIWATY
instruments are disclosed by location of operations. REEMBIRE -
Information on major customers: ) EEEXEFZESR:

No external customer contributed 10% or more to the
Group's revenue for both years.
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- For the year ended 31

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

7. HEMpA - WEREER - FHE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T

Fair value loss on financial assets BEATEFABR EREEL
at FVTPL, net ATEREFE (10,344) (15,325
Gain on modification of convertible loan notes {E&T AT I E R R K 2 Was = 2,459

Loss on wiritten off of property, W% - BEREREZER

plant and equipment (2) (1)
Government grants R #75 BY & - 2,593
Rent concession HeBE=E - 160
Others EAh 179 18
(10,167) (10,096

During the year ended 31 December 2022, included in the
government grants recognised are mainly Covid-19 related
subsidies of approximately HK$ 1,909,000, which relates to Job
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
grants.

HE-_ZT_—_F+-_A=+t—HBItEE"
BRI/ £ £ B8 HECovid- 19188
WHA—BNLTESTATEL MWL
TDHEBEBSRNRHEZRUETEER - %
L1 B2 0 AR B R I E A R IR 1 sk Sk A
£IH o

FRSAREERERAT —E-=EH 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRFISHBiAIER
loss before income tax is arrived at after charging: BRPTS BRI E 1B TS B T OB IBRGH
2023 2022
—EB-=F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cost of inventories sold EEGFERA 79,374 81,506
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN BN
— audit services — ZEAR TS 1,300 1,080
— non-audit services — B - 80
1,300 1,160
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRETE
equipment 383 184
Depreciation of rightofuse assets EREEENE 5,232 3,120
Employee costs [excluding directors’ BEXK(TREEEME)
emoluments) (Note 13) (Ka13) 23,357 21,576
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) BE=Me (et 14) 19,061 20,161
Shortterm leases expenses MEHERSY 2,268 3,635
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10.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-—T-=F+-A=+-RAILEE

FINANCE COSTS 9. BMERA

2023 2022
—EB-=F —_F_—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interest on borrowings EEFE 2,737 2,242
Inferest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 722 489
Interest on convertible loan notes AR EREEF S 5,534 4,566
8,993 7,297

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the esfimated
assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any part
of the estimated assessable profits over HK$2,000,000. No
Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the Company's
subsidiaries in Hong Kong for both years as they either did not
derive any assessable profits from Hong Kong or had esftimated
tax losses brought forward to offset against the estimated
assessable profifs.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiary is 25% for both years.

No Enferprise Income Tax has been provided as the Company’s
subsidiary in the PRC did not derive any assessable profits from
the PRC for both years.

10. FiBHimMx% (%)

BAEMNGHDRESFERTEN&Z -5
BETZBAs 2 \B ARG ERTUR
NEB_—_BEBETZEABIZEDZ
TABAFE -BRMEFEARRZE
BHBARLAREBEETMERT L
Mo IR R TR IRE R AR I E R
RUEMN > AW RUZEREERE R
MIS T -

REFBEECXAEFE(RERMEHRED
REEABTORERGH - T EWNE AR
RABEFEZREGRANZ_TH-

BN AR R Z B E A RN M EFEL
ARFPEEETMREREEH  BLIR
EHEEMAEHES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continved) 10. FREHiEY "(ER) (&)

The amount of income tax expense/(credit) in the consolidated REEmkEtMEEKERA B
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (B R) @K -
represents:
2023 2022
—E_=F —EE = —4&=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax FRMEH
— Over-provision in respect of prior years — BEFEREEE - (940)
Deferred tax RIEF IR 2,499 (1,187)
Income fax expense/ (credit) Frisfims(E®) 2,499 (2,127)
The income fax expense/ (credit) for the year can be reconciled to FAMBHRAY (KR ERGaEER

the loss before income tax in the consolidated statement of profit

H i 2 [ W as R B 2 B AT 1S 5% A &S 18 31 R

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: mr
2023 2022
—EC=F -z
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Loss before income tax bR PTG AT ES 1R (132,059) (56,401)
Tax calculated at the applicable tax RERBE (Ao "EH)
rate of 16.5% STE 2 FIA (21,790) (9,300)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries HiAhEEREEZME AR
operating in other jurisdictions TR R 2 Z & (18) (16)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BANRWA Z R E
tax purposes (1) (428)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible REHHFA 2 R E
for tax purposes 439 541
Overprovision in respect of prior years WEFEBEEE - (240)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences & #E 58 7] F18 &
not recognised ERIRBTE 12 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBBERZ BT E 24,455 8,123
Utilisation of tax losses previously PR LRI AR HIBERE
not recognised (598) (3)
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences B 5L BT AR FER <
previously not recognised AMBRERER = (28)
Income tax expense/(credit) FiEHimAs (Eke) 2,499 (2,127)
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11.

12.

DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

L

ME-F-=£+-A=+-BLEE

1. RS

The directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the EETREBNREBE_T_=F+_H

year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

=St BLEFEZEARE(ZT=Z
&) -

12. BREE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share atiributable to RRRBEABEERERNREEERET
owners of the Company is based on the following data: RIBATBURETE -
2023 2022
—BE-Z=HF —T——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER THETT

Loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company used in the basic and

RUAGHESRERAREERIE
ARARERARMEZFAEBR

diluted loss per share calculations (134,558) (54,274)
2023 2022
—E-=F T CF
Number of shares R E
Weighted average number of ordinary RUGESRERREFER
shares for the purposes of basic and RN A
diluted loss per share 770,480,836 770,480,836
The computation of diluted loss per share for both years does not P8 5 2 2 & B RS B 18 2 5T B 3 R R
assume the conversion of the Company's outstanding convertible AR A i *%@ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%
loan nofes since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease o RERABRRETESERERER

in loss per share.

BRI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

13. EMPLOYEE COSTS

Employee costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) comprise:

ISt

EEARA
BERA(TREEEMS) 0F

2023 2022

—EB-=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T BT
Basic salaries and discrefionary bonus EARFH & MRIBIEAL 21,498 20,129
Other staff benefits Hi 8 T1aF 896 482
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RONRE A ET B X 963 Q65
23,357 21,576

There was no forfeited confribution under any defined contribution

refirement plans available which may be used by the Group to

reduce the existing level of contributions, nor any contribution

under any defined contribution retirement plans was forfeited by

the Group during the years ended 31 December 2023 and

REBEE_E_=ZFRER_FT__F+=A
=+ —RHLIEFE  ANEEIWELWAEMA A
AR BRI A K 2 F 58 HFUR RE
B F 2 E - INEE AR A E B SRR ETE
T Z R -

2022.
14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 14, EEREREBEAEZHME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments () EEME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to ENRENAARESE M BEEN
the directors of the Company are as follows: I
2023 2022
—EB-=F ZEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Directors' fee EF548e 12,520 11,620
Basic salaries and discrefionary bonus EXRF & RMIBIEA 6,487 8,487
Retirement benefits scheme confributions 3R KAE FI 51 B 5% 54 54
19,061 20,161
No emoluments have been paid by the Group fo the $$3§W1¢§Wiﬁﬁﬁ$§ﬁ
directors as an inducement fo join or upon joining the M@VEZ%MA$%QMA$%?§
Group or as compensation for loss of office in both years. ZREHERREBA ZBEE - W&
No directors waived or agreed to waive any of their EEHRAFERREFRMEFE
emoluments in both years. Z i
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 4. EERESREBAEZHE ©)
EMOLUMENTS (Continved)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Confinved) (o) EBME(®)
The emolument of each director for the year ended 31 EENBE_T-_=F+=-_A=1+—
December 2023 is set out below: AEFEZHMESHNAT
Basic
salaries  Retirement
and benefits
discretionary scheme
Name of director EEHE Fees bonus contributions Total
EXFER EREF
ws BB TEAL s8R st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx TR FER T

Executive directors HITES

M:r. Lei Hong Wai FHERE 4,940 = - 4,940
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REELE 4,940 = = 4,940
Mr. leung Alex PRIERR 120 3,510 18 3,648
Ms. Lo Ming Wan SBRER L 120 949 18 1,087
Mr. Tse Chi Keung HERETAE 120 2,028 18 2,166
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia RIEBBLA 1,920 - - 1,920
Independent non-executive BAFHTES

directors

M. Lai Hok Lim RERES A 120 - - 120
M. Lien Wai Hung EEERE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EEGRLA 120 - = 120

12,520 6,487 54 19,061
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 4. EEREREBAEZHE (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continved)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (o) EEME#E)
The emolument of each director for the year ended 31 BEERBE_T__F+-A
December 2022 is set out below: =T HLEFEZMEHNAT :
Basic
salaries Retirement
and benefits
discretionary scheme
Name of director EEHSR Fees bonus  contributions Total
EAXEE BRE A
we KBIBTEA S8l K Kt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TR

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Lei Hong Wai THERE 4,940 - - 4,940

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton ok B{E A& 4,940 - - 4,940

Mr. leung Alex RIRE & 120 3,510 18 3,648

Ms. lo Ming Wan SBRRE Rt 120 Q49 18 1,087

Mr. Tse Chi Keung ENEE: Ve 120 2,028 18 2,166

Mr. Yuan Hui Xia RIBELAE 1,020 2,000 = 3,020

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors

M:r. Lai Hok Lim REEESE A 120 - - 120

Mr. Llien Wai Hung EEELE 120 = = 120

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen mERTE 120 = = 120
11,620 8,487 54 20,161

(b) Five highest paid individuals b) BEUESHFMAL

Five (2022: five) directors whose emoluments are disclosed REBEE-_T-_=F+-_A=+—H1

in the analysis presented above were among the five FE - RARBR(CE-__F AR)EF

individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group ZER EX 2V RSB AR S

during the year ended 31 December 2023. AL Z DM HEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023  #;

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

22T

=FETZA=+t—BHIEFE

15. M1% - BERRE

Furniture,
leasehold  fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
HE R -
MEEE HERRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT FHT
At 1 January 2022 R-_ZTE-_—F—H—H
Cost BN 396 1,154 1,550
Accumulated impairment Z2EHRIE (170) (212) (382)
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (170) (768) (938)
Net carrying amounts AREDHE 56 174 230
Net carrying amounfs af RZEZ=—F—H—H
1 January 2022 Z BREFE 56 174 230
Additions NE 516 115 631
Depreciation charge FrEX L (108) (76) (184)
Written off 35 = (1) (1)
Net carrying amounts at RZBE_—_F+-A=+—H
31 December 2022 Z BREF(E 464 212 676
At 31 December 2022 R-_E-_—F+=—A=+—8
Cost BN Q12 1,268 2,180
Accumulated impairment Z2ERE (170) (212) (382)
Accumulated depreciation REHinE (278) (844) (1,122
Net carrying amounts FREHE 464 212 676
Net carrying amounts at R-ZE-—=%—H—H
1 January 2023 ZEmFE 464 212 676
Additions NE = 191 191
Depreciation charge WELH (270) (113) (383)
Written off 85 - (2) (2)
Net carrying amounts af RZZE-_=F+-"A=+—H
31 December 2023 2 BREDFE 194 288 482
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8
Cost BN Q12 Q70 1,882
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (170) (212) (382)
Accumulated depreciation ZEtihE (548) (470) (1,018)
Net carrying amounts FREFE 194 288 482
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, due fo confinued
losses for several refail shops of the Chinese health products segment, the
directors of the Company considered there was indication for impairment
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets with carrying
amount of HK$188,000 (2022: HK$505,000) and HK$2,534,000
(2022: HK$3,725,000) respectively. The Group estimates the
recoverable amount of those refail shops, each representing a CGU, to
which the assets belong when it is not possible to estimate their
recoverable amount individually, including allocation of corporate assets
when reasonable and consistent basis can be established.

The recoverable amount of CGUs was based on the value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors of the Company covering a five-year
period, and pre-fax discount rate of 13% (2022: 13%). Other key
assumption for the value in use calculation relates to the estimation of cash
flows which include budgefed sales, such estimation is based on the
CGUs" past performance and the directors’” expectations for the market
development. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond
the five-year period is 2% (2022: 2%), which do not exceed the long-term
growth rate for the industry in the corresponding country. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised impairment loss of nil
(2022: HK$nil) and HK$321,000 (2022: HK$622,000) on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively as the carrying
amounts of these assefs exceeded the recoverable amount at 31
December 2023. As the carrying amounts of these assets have been
reduced fo their recoverable amounts, any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amount would result in
further impairment loss.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023

5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE
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16. LEASES

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of retail shops, offices and warehouses
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered info for fixed ferm of
1 to 3 years (2022: 0.5 fo 3 years). lease ferms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.
In defermining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Cerfain leases of retail shops comprise variable lease payments
that depends on the original monthly sales of those retail shops if
the amounts are higher than the original monthly rental. The rest of
the leases comprise only fixed payments over the lease terms.

16. 8

HEERB 2 HE (UEBEAFAD)

AEERELEREZETEEH HA
ERRE-HEAHNNE—ZE2=F2ET
FHIV(CE_—F BYRRE=F) o
HEGERNIRERNEEEZ:  AHATE
R RGNS RETHERRK T[T
EHEEZzRERN AEEREAAOTE
WEETE A #9758 Hl #0172 HAR -

ETZERWHEERREEHENR &
ENFBARZETERHIGAEHE
H(MzeEeRMBAERES) - #TH
EEBRRNEMAZETEMNRK -

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Buildings leased for own use, carried EERABEEZET
at depreciated cost (RITERARTIER) 7,502 6,077

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in
profit or loss is as follows:

EERaTHAZCHERECHAXERED
ranT

2023 2022
—E== —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Variable lease payments not included in AHARERBEZ
the measurement of lease liabilities FEHEMR 309 161
Shorterm lease expenses HEAEERX 2,268 3,635

The total cash outflow of leases for the year ended 31 December

2023 was HK$9,933,000 (2022: HK$10,588,000).

TEEERRIERBERAR —T_=F%H

HE-_ZT-_=%+_F=+—BItEEZ
HERERHBEBEBANBNT=ZB=T%
(B —F:—FERT+N\ENTHET) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)
(Continued)

Future renfal payments relating to leases not yet commenced fo
which the Group is committed as af 31 December 2023 and

2022 are as follows:

16. H&E (&)

HEEB 2 HE (UABAERD) (8)

HEAEBRN S -_=FR T - _F+=
B=+—HEA#EBEAAGBZAEEHEZ
RRBESMAZOT :

Later than
one year and

Not later than not later than
one year two years Total
iR —F
THEB—F BLRAMF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHET FHET
At 31 December 2023 R-TE-—=F+—_HA=+—
Retail shop TEEH 876 876 1,752
At 31 December 2022 R-_EBE-_—_F+-_A=+—
Retail shop TEH = = =

lease of refail shops are either with only fixed lease payments or
contain variable lease payment that are based on 8% to 16
(2022: 8% to 16%) of monthly gross sales and minimum lease
payment that are fixed over the lease term. The payment ferms are
common in retail shops in Hong Kong where the Group operates.
The amount of fixed and variable lease payments paid/payable

fo relevant lessors during the year are as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

16. HE (&)
HEERB 2 HE (UEBARRD) ()

BE_S-_=-f+-A=t+t—-RALFE

Number Fixed Variable Total
of shops payments payments payments

EHBE  BEEMR TG ARAR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR

Retail shops without variable lease 3 #& A] S & 5k 2

payments TEER 1 781 - 781

Retail shops with variable lease REAEHENTKZ
payments TEEH 9 4,479 309 4,788
10 5,260 309 5,569

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-_—F#+_A=+—HILEFE

Number Fixed Variable Total
of shops payments payments payments

JE 2B BIREMK  AEMK (RER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT TET TR

Retail shops without variable lease 3 f& °] B30 &1 58,2

payments TEEH 1 847 = 847

Retail shops with variable lease REABHEENRZ
A — TEES 9 5,795 161 5,956
10 6,642 161 6,803

The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is that
higher rental costs are incurred by shop with higher sales.
Variable rent expenses are expected fo confinue fo represent a

similar proportion of shop sales in future years.

GEE DEUTEE T LR A Sy 2o
BEHEE Y EREAREREKA B
TR BRI BRERERRKEE
R 2 AL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

(Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the

movements are as follows:

16. HE (&)
HEEB 2 HE (UAEBAERD) (8)

EREEE
AEBEERBEEZREEREZFHWT ¢

Buildings

BF

HK$'000

T

At 1 January 2022 R-ZE_—_F—HF—H 2,284

Additions NE 7,535

Depreciation e (3,120)

Impairment (Nofe 15) BB (B 15) (622)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—BX

—T-=%—H—H 6,077

Additions IN=T 6,978

Depreciation e (5,232)

Impairment (Note 15) BAE (Mt 15) (321)

At 31 December 2023 RZE_=F+-_A=+—H 7,502
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For the year ended 31 December 2023  #;

16. LEASES (Continved)

Lease liabilities

22T

=FETZA=+t—BHIEFE

16. HE (&)
HEAE

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities and the AEEHERBE L REENREZSHNT
movements are as follows:
Buildings
BF
HK$'000
TET
At 1 January 2022 R-—ZE-_—F—H—H 6,523
Additions NE 7,535
Inferest expense FERZ 489
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid- 19 HHETE S E=E (160)
lease payments HERMK (6,792)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZEB__F+_A=+—8BK
—E-=%—H—H 7,595
Additions NE 6,978
Inferest expense M EF X 722
lease payments HERRK (7,356)
At 31 December 2023 RZZTE—=F+=A=+—H 7,939
Future lease payments are as follows: AREEERKMT
Minimum Present value
lease of minimum
payments Interest  lease payments
BEHEE
REHEENK F S NRBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2023 R=ZB-Z=F+=ZA=+—H FHET FHET FTHET
Within 1 year —FRX 6,262 (472) 5,790
More than 1 year but HiE—FEIRRF
less than 2 years 2,077 (89) 1,988
More than 2 years but HBMEELRAE
less than 5 years 164 (3) 161
8,503 (564) 7,939
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved)

16. H&E (&)

Lease liabilities (Continued) HERRE#
Minimum Present value
lease of minimum
payments Interest  lease payments
XEHE
REBEE K FE HRIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2022 RZTE__F+-A=+—H T Tt THETT
Within 1 year —F R 5,200 (448) 4,752
More than 1 year but il —FELRME
less than 2 years 2,650 (122) 2,528
More than 2 years but HEMFELRESF
less than 5 years 322 (7) 315
8,172 (577) 7,595
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: AEBENKZRESTAT :
2023 2022
—EC-= -z
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Current liabilities mEEE 5,790 4,752
Non-current liabilities JERBAG 2,149 2,843
7,939 7,595

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the incremental
borrowing rate applied fo lease liabilities range from 5.95% to
11% (2022: 5.95% to 10.00%).

Total lease payment related to lease contract entered info between
the Group and a fellow subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of
the Company amounted to HK$ 1,656,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: HK$1,645,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023  #;

E=E==

Frt-A=t—HLHFE

17. GOODWILL 17. &8

2023 2022

—ECZ=HF —E——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TR
Cost B 614 614
Accumulated impairment ZFHRE 614 614
Net carrying amounts RREFE = -

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that
business combination. For the purpose of impairment testing, cost
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives were

EBREBZAHBBLAENKRERDEE
ERAREBAHER RS ELENM -
SUBEREM S AEKRANARARER
AERFHzEBTEEIEECD#AZR

allocated to CGU identified as follows: SEEBMWOT
Goodwill Intangible assets (Note 18)
[5ES BEE (KaF18)
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EB-=FE —E-= —EBE-=F —ZT—_—
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT AT FET FHET
Cost @
— Chinese health products — FREREE M 614 614 5,094 5,094
Accumulated amortisation and Bt 85 KR E
impairment
— Chinese health products — FRERER 614 614 5,094 5,094
Net carrying amounts RRTE R E - - - -
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FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

8. BILEE

Trademarks
[ELE
(Note)
(FfF5E)
HK$'000
FHET
Cost 5%
1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, JrA— F—A—HB -ZZT=_=_F+=A
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 B -=F—A—HBK
=%#+_-_HA=+—H 5,094
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt RRE
1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, R—ZTE-_—F—H—H —F—_—
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 +=—A=+—H8 -ZE=-=F—8—-HBK
T _=F+-_A=+—H (5,094)

Net carrying amounts
At 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2023

BREFE
RZB-_—_F+-_A=+—HK
=F®+-A=+—8H -~

Note:

The useful lives of trademarks, which were acquired through the acquisition
of the Group’s Chinese health products business, are estimated by the
directors of the Company fo be indefinite as the trademarks are renewable
at insignificant cost at the option of the Group. Full impairment loss was

recognised during the nine months ended 31 December 2019

160
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19. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2023 and 2022 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

19. B AFE

RZBE_=ZFR_F_—_F+_A=+—

B ARBZHBERBFEMAT

Place of Form of Particulars of
incorporation business issued share capital/ Effective
Name of subsidiary and operations structure registered capital percentage holding ~ Nature of business
AR LR BRIRE/
WEARER EXn E3.3 ES EMEAFE BEREREIE  XBHE
2023 2022
“E-=F —ToCF
% %
Shares held directly:
EERAZRG
Future Empire Limited Britsh Virgin lslands  Corporate Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Invesiment holdings and
invesfing in financial
instruments
Future Empire Limited ABABRER AR L@k 50,000% T REERRBAERIA
Ace Season Holdings Limited Britsh Virgin lslands  Corporate Ordinary US$1,000 100 100 Invesiment holdings
Ace Season Holdings Limited AEARREE AF @R 1,000%T RE R
New Mind (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$ 1 100 100 Invesiment holdings
el (&) ARAR &R R LaRIET REZR
Shares/investments held indirectly:
BESEZ R/ RE
Hong Kong Healthwise Limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$ 1 100 100 Dormant
Hong Kong Healthwise Limited 0 G LaRIAT EEXK
Ulira Classic Invesiments Limited Britsh Virgin lslands  Corporate Ordinary US$1 100 100 Invesiment holdings
Ulra Classic Investments Limited ARAARES QA LER I ZT RE R
Good Cheer Global Limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$ 1 100 100 Money lending business
CGood Cheer Global Limited EE NG LRRIET HEXH

TEEERRIERBERAR —T_=F%H
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FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

19. SUBSIDIARIES (Confinved) 19. BT (&)
Place of Form of Particulars of
incorporation business issued share capital/ Effective
Name of subsidiary and operations structure registered capitol percentage holding ~ Nature of business
AR BRTRE/
HWEARAE EXnA EBBREA AMEFFHE ERBRAIL 44
2023 2022
SRocF CTOCF
% %

Shares/invesments held indlrectly:

BERBEZRG RE

NPH Holdings Limited Biitish Virgin slonds ~ Corporate Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Investment holdings

NPH Holdings Limited AEABREE AF LR 50,000% T RAER

Poo Yuk Loong limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$350,000 100 100 Investment holdings

FRERERAA &h NG LR 350,00087 RE R

NP H SinoMeditech Limited Hong Kong Corporale Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Investment holdings

BT ERARAHF &R NG TRR2ET RAER

Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$ 1,200,000 100 100 Trading of Chinese hedlth
Company Limited producs

B T2ERNBRAT &R NG @R 1,200,000 PERRRES

Poo Yuk Loong Food (Shenzhen] The PRC Corporate Registered 100 100 Trading of Chinese healh
Company Limited? RMB3,000,000 products

REERR(RI)ERRA! e NG &R PERERE S

AK#3,000,0007
i Limited liability company (solely invested by Taiwan, Hong Kong or # REBRT > EREEAT (22 HmaE
Macau legal person) established in the PRC. BRI AIDE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

20. BRFPEGFABEZSHMEE

PROFIT OR LOSS
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — MEB LM ZBRAZES —
at fair value EATE
— Current portion (Nofe (a)) — mEEso (Kfat(a)) 39,861 56,170
Unlisted equity securities FEEMRAREH
— Non-current portion (Nofe (b)) — IERENEB D (K aF (b)) 559 1,143
40,420 57,313

Fair value of listed equity securities is determined based on quoted
bid prices in the Stock Exchange. Fair value of unlisted equity
securifies is determined based on valuation using asset-based
approach.

As at 31 December 2023, a portfolio of listed equity securities
with carrying amount of HK$39,861,000 (2022:
HK$56,170,000) have been pledged to secure margin loans
from securities brokers (Note 26).

ETBRARE 2 A FE TR R B 3P P
BIRETE - FLMRAZFHF 2 RAFETIR
BEREEEELAEHEEE -

RZZBE_=ZF+_A=+—8 ' EmBRRX
BHEECEAE=TAEBENTABE—TE
BT CE-——F AT AE—+E8BET)
EFEE URBREZTHFELZRES
BER(HE20) °

Note: Hiat

(@) The equity securities are classified as financial assets at FVTPL as (@) MHARBRAZEZDEZZREHNHEMBEA
they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in FHAHRAERER Z2A#MNERIAE
near term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments Gz—85 BAEZEBESOHAERE
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a BAEZEREX o BER/RATER
recent actual pattern of shortterm profitiaking. Changes in their fair ANEHZERMEE - REWRABFZDF
values are recognised in profit or loss (Note 7). BEEEHNIERNTER (ML) »

(b]  Fair value of unlisted equity securities was determined based on b) FELEMRABHZATFEIAEERER

valuation using assetbased approach. Further details of fair value
measurement are disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ZHEEITEEMEE - AT EH B8
— HHERERA M RAM T RE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. B8
2023 2022
—E-= -~
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T T
Finished goods SURK 56,023 55,121

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no write-
down of inventories was recognised.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS

The carrying amounts of frade and other receivables, deposits and

REBEE—_E_=FRkR_FE_—_F+_A
=+ HIEFE WEERMEAEFEE -

22. BRBWESRAREMBKRFRIR -

ERAMNRIE

EWE SRR REMEKHIEA R kA

prepayments are as follows: NHRIBZBREENT :

2023 2022

—EC=F —E-_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Trade receivables JEUNE 5 R 6,137 6,420
Less: allowance for ECL B TREEEEEEE (616) (616)
5,521 5,804

Deposits and other receivables e R H i EWFRIA 4,880 5714
Prepayments AN FRIE 3,326 3,203
13,727 14,721
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L

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of
allowance for ECL, based on invoice dates as of the end of
reporting period, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

ME-F-=£+-A=+-BLEE

22 RRESRAREMEBRRE &

EREMNREE)
(o) EREBERSHRIEZAHZEEK

BSERNERBEEBHRRE) 2
AR D ATANT

2023 2022

—E-= —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
0-90 days = N+H 5,517 5,800
9@1-180 days N+—BE—B/\+H 4 4
5,521 5,804

The Group's sales are on open account terms. Credit ferms
are reviewed on a regular basis. The normal credit terms
range from 30 to 90 days [2022: 30 to Q0 days) but
business partners with strong financial backgrounds may be
offered longer credit terms.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no impairment
loss was recognised in respect of tfrade receivables (2022:
nil).

Further details of ECL assessment on the Group's trade and other
receivables are disclosed in Note 3/(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

(b)

REE 7 HEHUABRIGETHET 5
B eTHR EBEEHENT
=t+tHEh+HB (ZZE=Z=F: =+
HEA+R) BHHOEEZ X
BEHORTREZEES-

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HLF
& - WEEWE SRR R EE
B(ZEZZF :8]) o

B BA L7 52 18 B W B 5 R R e L b B R
FETRBEEERI G ZE—TFHER
iR A BT R MY 5 37 (o) 2R -

TEEERRIERBERAR —T_=F%H
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES

The carrying amount of loan receivables from money lending
business of the Group was as follows:

20t

FE W & =X
BAREREXRBEEZBREEFKAEE

LN

2023 2022
—E-=F -

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

loan receivables arising from money B REXBE £ 2 BRIKE K
lending business 311,313 320,800
Less: allowance for ECL B TEHEEEERE (294,218 (186,749)
17,095 134,051
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, loan receivables are R =FR=_F-_—_F+=_A=1+—
unsecured, inferestbearing ranging from 8%—13% per annum. =R Fuﬁz% AR TRE'E%'J‘F =]

DZNEBRZT=5TE

The maturity profile of the loan receivables, net of allowance for RI|ERR  BWER(NREHREEEE

ECL, if any, at the end of the reporting period, analysed by the
remaining period to ifs contracted maturity, is as follows:

BE(A))ZANATAIEA ZFHHR

DT Z BB RMT

2023 2022

—E-=F B F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —FRX 15,623 132,002
Over 1 year wm—F 1,472 2,049
17,095 134,051

During the year ended 31 December 2023, impairment loss of
HK$107,469,000 was recognised in respect of loan receivables
(2022: HK$24,784,000).

166 China Healthwise Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023

HE_Z_="F+-_A=1T—BItFE"
EREUKEFRERBEBE —EZ
tEEt+RBEALTFEL(ZEZZ_F:

—TEBEEtN\EOTERT) -



For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24 RERBETEEY

2023 2022
—E-=F =z

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Cash and bank balances R & MIRTTA 14,421 16,850

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed with RITEREFPNXRFE  DEERLE
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. BAORBZEEBRFZRIT

Further details of ECL assessment on the Group's bank balances EBREASBRTEBRETZEREES

are disclosed in Note 37(a) to the consolidated financial B 2E—THBREE M BRERM E

statements.

37(a) B ER ©

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 25 BENESRARAEMESFIARE

CHARGES TEAR

2023 2022
—E-=F T

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TR
Trade payables P8 5 R 23,268 23,770
Other payables and accrued charges H e SRR K B B 10,159 12,195
33,427 35,965

The ageing analysis of frade payables, based on invoice dates as

PEHRCERAHZENES

i
o
N B
s
Eisiy

of the end of reporting period, is as follows: B BRER A TIAT

2023 2022
—E-= g

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
0-90 days TEATH 23,129 23,631
91-180 days h+—BZ—BANA+H - -
181-365 days —BN+—BE=ZBARTHH - -
Over 365 days BM=E/THH 139 139
23,268 23,770
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FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

26. BORROWINGS 26. B &

2023 2022

—EC-= -z
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Margin loans from securities brokers 2R B BH L4 < REBE 2 E K 15,108 15,472
Other loan HMER 13,614 15,792
28,722 31,264
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had margin loans from RZE-_=F+-_A=+—B AEEX
securities brokers of HK$15,108,000 (2022: HK$15,472,000). BREAFRLZRBCERAE—THRE—T
The inferest rates of margin loans range from 8% o 10% per annum BNTEL(ZT__F: —FTHEEOETt
(2022: 8% to 10%) per annum, repayable on demand and were 1%_:1:5%%) RESERZFEFENFN
secured by a portfolio of listed equity securities with carrying EtECE-_—F:N\EE+E) A
amounts of HK$39,861,000 (2022: HK$56,170,000). ﬁﬁégqﬂﬁﬁa WABEEEBE=F LB+

BE—FHrT (B :AFAE—Tt
BB 2 ERAESES EEE -

At 31 December 2023, the Group had other loan of RZBE-=F+-_A=+—H ~&EE8H
HK$13,614,000 (2022: HK$15,792,000). The other loan is ﬁ{ﬁg#\*:FEﬁT\Jr*%@:F/%ﬁ(:g
interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime Rate (as quoted by the et S *¥ﬁ§’t+ﬁf§;7:ﬁ%ﬁ>

designated bank) plus 4% per annum, secured by share charge EFTIREEZEBENE BRIETE TT#WE)
over issued shares in a subsidiary of the Group and guaranteed SMERARFE - UAREE— F'EJ Bt A Al
by the Company. As the other loan contfains a repayable on ZE?éﬁﬁ&f/ﬁz%fﬁﬁgaﬂfﬁﬁ 0 AR
demand clause, the entire outstanding balance of the other loan DRAERER BAREMERESEEEAREX
was classified under current liabilities. 188 &K Hfﬁg RN & EBARME R A ER YT

ErBRRSARE
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27. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred fax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking info consideration the offsefting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, if any, were as follows:

ey 3

For the year ended 31 December 2023

27. EEHIE

FRELEHBEEMBBES (T EE—
WIS AR N AERIEE (A)) T

Deferred fax assets: REFIHE EE -

Allowance

for ECL

on financial

assets

RERMEE

EHEE

BETRZ

BiE

HK$'000

FBT

At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—_HF—HF—H 1,142

Credit fo profif or loss T AER 1,555
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZE_Z_F+ZA=+—BK

—E-_=9—8F—H 2,697

Charge fo profit or loss ERCEEilES (2,697)

At 31 December 2023 RZEBE-_=F+=-A=+—H -
Deferred tax liabilities: FEEFIERE -

Convertible

loan notes

CIE:Y:s

BERE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2022 RZEZZF—H—H -

Charge to profit or loss SEEERENIES 368
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZFEZZF+ZHA=+—8K

—E-_=9—F—H 368

Credit fo profit or loss FFAB &= (198)

At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H 170
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

27. DEFERRED TAX (Continved)

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following:

27. ERERIA ()

WA T S RERRLEHRAEE

2023 2022
—EB-=F T

HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T BT

Deductible temporary differences B H00R b S = 5
— Accelerated tax depreciation — RFIRBINE 6,190 6,117
Unused tax losses R IEEE 423,322 278,737
429,512 284,854

Deferred tax assets are recognised for estimated fax losses carry
forward fo the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits are probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred tax assefs in respect of estimated losses
amounting to approximately HK$423,322,000 (2022:
HK$278,737,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. All tax losses as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 may be carried forward indefinitely.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B&

Authorised
EE
Convertible cumulative
redeemable preference shares of

US$100,000 each Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
SREETEERZ
ARRTEETREELR SREESHT-BrzLER
Number of shares Number of shares
R4 E RH A
US$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
FEm Tk TET
At T January 2022, 31 December ~ RZZZZ£—-A—HR
2022, 1 January 2023 and —E-F+-A=f+-8"
31 December 2023 —TZ=F-A-HRk
—E-_=F+-fA=1—H 40 4,000 150,000,000 1,500,000

Issued and fully paid
BRITRAR
Convertible cumulative
redeemable preference shares of

US$100,000 each Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
BREETEXTZ
ARBRATEETEEELR BREESHZT-BIzEBER
Number of shares Number of shares
ROHE REEE
US$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
= Tk FET
At 1 Jonuary 2022, 31 December ~ RZZZZF—A—HR
2022, 1 January 2023 and —E-—#+-fA=+—-RH-:
31 December 2023 —E-=F-f—-HRk
—E-ZF+-A=+-H = = 770,481 7,705
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FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE
29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

29. BBIRHESTE

172

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”| for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operation. The Scheme, which was adopted by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders on 14 September 2012, constitutes
a share option scheme governed by Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

Under the Scheme, share options can be exercised at any time
during the periods fo be defermined and nofified by the directors
of the Company fo the grantees at the time of making offers to
grant share options to them, provided that such periods shall not
exceed the period of ten years from the date of grant. The scheme
mandate limit of the Scheme was refreshed pursuant to a
shareholders’ resolution passed in the annual general meetfing of
the Company held on 4 September 2018 (the “AGM”"). The
maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
is 85,213,083, representing 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as af the date of the AGM, after the
share consolidation of the Company on 25 September 2020. The
subscription price for the shares under the Scheme shall be a price
defermined by the directors at its discretion, provided that it shall
not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares stated
in the daily quotation sheets of Stock Exchange on the date of
grant and (i) the average closing price of the shares stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of share options. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable for each of the share
options granted.

The Scheme had been lapsed on 14 September 2022.

No share option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled

during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no outstanding
share options under any share option scheme.
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30. RESERVES

The Group

The natures and purposes of reserves are set out below:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law [Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions and dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distributions or dividend
payments, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

Convertible loan nofes — equity reserve

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible loan nofes relating fo
the equity component (i.e. opfion to convert the debt info share
capital).

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve represents foreign exchange
differences arising from the franslation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy sef out in Note 4{l) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Retained profits/accumulated losses

It represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in
profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2023

ME-F-=£+-A=+-BLEE

30. f##%

rEME
FEHZEE R B OEINT

R 178
REREHERRARERD E228 - K
REZ B EE R RIEEAMEIEAME K
ABRIZ 63 FERIBRR N 0 Ik SR BB,
HEZEDIRIRNRER  AREREHE
BENBEEHBRETINHZES -

URRENEE — BalEfE
BOTABREERRR 2 S50 g A
D (AREBERSRAZEER) B
B X R B E

ERRBRERRESINEBHBRERE
ELZIINEZR - ZREEDRESFSY
BRI E A S BRERETRE -

REBF Rt B8
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

30. RESERVES (Continved) 30. & &)
The Company AT
Convertible
Share loan notes —  Accumulated
premium equity reserve losses Total
CIEd)
EREE —
DR E e ES 0 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT FAT FHET
At 1 January 2022 RZZE-__F—H—H 112,976 19,835 (56,923) /5,888
Loss for the year FREE 5 - (14,635) (14,635)
At 31 December 2022 and N-—_EBE-_—_F+=-_F=+—H
1 January 2023 r=—TE-_=%—HF—H 112,976 19,835 (71,558) 61,253
Loss for the year FRERE = - (65,029) (65,029)
At 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F+-_A=+—H 112,976 19,835 (136,587) (3,776)
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31.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

31. ERARAMBMMR K

FINANCIAL POSITION
2023 2022
—E-=F —ZE-
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FREEE
Interests in subsidiaries N SIEPNGIP T 76,398 141,966
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFAEEZ
TREE 559 1,143
76,957 143,109
Current assets REEE
Prepayments FEfTRIA 1,901 151
Cash and cash equivalents Ra LR EEY 991 350
2,892 501
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accrued charges  E fth FE - 5018 K fE 51+ & F 3,511 3,241
Convertible loan notes AR EREE 72,239 -
75,750 3,241
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (72,858) (2,740)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 4,099 140,369
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible loan notes AR E R EE - 71,043
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE 170 368
170 71,411
Net assets EEFE 3,929 68,958
EQUITY e
Share capital f& A 28 7,705 7,705
Reserves B 30 (3,776) 61,253
Total equity MR 3,929 68,958
Signed on behalf of the board of directors by: REE=SKE
Lei Hong Wai Tse Chi Keung
i d =R
Direcfor Director
EE2 -
hERERFEEREEAT —E-=FR 175
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FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. XREE
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no material REmm= ot e H = - —
contingent liabilities. B AEEYEEALABE-

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. FREALRS

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the BE_ 2 _=ZFf#k_2Z2-_—_F+_AH

Group had fransactions and balances with related parties, some =t HLEFE AEECREBAEAL

of which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant fo the (BOTRBELTRABERRSEEAL)

Listing Rules. Besides, transactions between the Company and its TRGRBEREER WIN ARAIRE

subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not MBARZEZRZERGEE AR -

disclosed in this nofe. I PP B ER -

(a) During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, () BEZZT-_=FR-_ZFT__F+=H
the Group entered info the following material transactions =T—HIEFE KAEEEFBEEA
with related parties: TRIVATERRS ¢
Related party relationship Types of transaction Transaction amount
BFHREALTER REEH XEZEH

2023 2022
—E-CF —ZF-_=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT THT
Fellow subsidiary of a substantial Shorterm lease expenses
shareholder of the Company EEAERX
ARB—HBEERRZAFRMB LA 1,656 1,645

(b) Compensation of key management personnel b) TEEEEREHFMWEE
remuneration
The remuneration of directors, who are key management EZ(EFRIEEEERE) HFMNER
personnel, are disclosed in Nofe 14(a) fo the consolidated BB REMFE 14(a) B E -
financial statements.

The remuneration of directors is determined by the EEFHMAFHEES2RAIELER
remunerafion committee having regard tfo the salaries paid DA E  BEABEREEAK
by comparable companies, time commitment and AEEEMERKHEET -
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

On 8 October 2018 [the “Issue Date”), the Company issued
initially 8% straight bonds with a principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 with conditional conversion rights (the
"Conversion Rights”). The bonds mature two years from the Issue
Date at their principal amount, or subject fo the satisfaction of
certain conditions precedent in relation fo the Conversion Rights
(the "CB Conditions Precedent’), can be converted info ordinary
shares of the Company at the holder’s option (the “Conversion
Option”’) at the fixed rate of HK$O.1 per share. On 22
November 2018 (the "Change Date”’), the CB Conditions
Precedent have been fulfilled and the straight bonds were
changed to 6% convertible loan notes embedded with the rights
of early redemption by the Company (the “Redemption Rights”).
The convertible loan notes are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. Further details of the convertible loan notes were set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 8 October 2018 and 22
November 2018. On 28 August 2020, the Company entered
info the supplemental agreement with the subscriber that the
Company and the subscriber conditionally agreed to extend the
original maturity dafe of convertible loan nofes for two years to 10
October 2022 and all the conditions precedent was fulfilled on @
October 2020.

The convertible loan notes contain the Redemption Rights that
allow the Company as the issuer to redeem the convertible loan
nofes af par together with accrued interests at any time during the
life of the convertible loan notes. The redemption price is
substantially equal to the amortised cost of the liability component
of the convertible loan notes. Accordingly, the Redemption Rights
are considered fo be ‘closely related’ 1o the liability component of
the convertible loan notes, and the Redemption Right is therefore
not separately recognised from the liability component of the
convertible loan notes.

34. TRKRERT

RZZE—NF+ANB([FETH] AR
AN ETN\BZERES A5 A
—RB-TEBTENEE S BE ([8
BE]) - BHFZASEEETARBTME
BEH SfFERKEEREFE AT
R (TR ERLERIEGHD % 8
AMEZEECERSRES — B cEk
BARRZEBR ([EREE]) HNZF
—NE+—A=+=B(2FR]) 7k
BREFERGHGEERERRERESFEE
BANEZABRBREREE  RBRARAZ
REEDNE((BEEE]) - AT miRERE

TIEB T E BRI RBRERZRZE
—HHBHRARARBSHAE T NF+
ANBERZZE—N\F+—A=Z+ZHzZA
L - RZE_ZTFNA=F+/\H KAAF
HRBARI LA HE  ARARRBEA
Bl R E A R E R E R R EH
BEEMEE_ZS__F+A+H @R
BERBHER S -_TFE+ANBREERK o

AMEEREENAEREDE  THFAAR
(ERBETANRITBREEREZRFHAME
FIZEEEE TR ERE R R ERME -
BOEABEENATARERZBRAES
D EERA o B I - B R AR AR S AT
BRERZBRAENS [ZTHEE] - At
BOETEABRERERRELRD D
HERR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE
34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continved)

34. TRKRERTE &)

178

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
exercised Redemption Rights o redeem the convertible loan notes

with principal amount of HK$ 13,200,000.

the Company

On 17 August 2022, the Company entered into the supplemental
agreement with the subscriber that the Company and the
subscriber conditionally agreed fo extend the maturity date of
convertible loan notes for two years to 10 October 2024 and fo
amend the conversion price of the convertible loan notes from
HK$1.00 per conversion share (adjusted after share consolidation
effective on 25 September 2020) to HK$0.38 per conversion
share. All the conditions precedent was fulfilled on 10 October
2022 and a gain on modification of HK$2,459,000 was

recognised.

The directors at the Company considered the terms of the
convertible loan notes met the ‘fixed-forfixed' criterion. Therefore,
the Conversion Option is recognised as equity component of the
convertible loan nofes.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined at the Change Date. The fair value
of the liability component, was calculated using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible loan notes. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, is included in shareholders' equity net of deferred tax.
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34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continved)

The convertible loan notes recognised in the consolidated

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Eﬁﬁ_g:_

F+-A=+

34. THRRERRERE &)

REEHMBRRKRER 2 RRERERE

statement of financial position are calculated as follows: THZA TG E -
HK$'000
TR
Equity component of convertible loan notes REFRZATMRERRBEZ RS D
on the Change Date 19,835
Equity component of convertible loan notes R-B__F—H—H-
as at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 2 F+-A=+—HK
and 31 December 2023 —FE_=Ft-_A=t—HZ
AR ERE R 2 S0 19,835
Liabilities component at 1 January 2022 RZBE-_—F—A—HBHZAEEXD 72,300
Modification of convertible loan notes BT AT IR B SR E & (2,459)
Inferest expense FMERZ 4,566
Coupon interest ESySN (3,364)
Liabilities component at 31 December 2022 and RZBE__F+-A=+—HK
1 January 2023 —E=F—A—HZzEBEIXS 71,043
Inferest expense NS 5,534
Coupon inferest R (4,338)
Liabilities component at 31 December 2023 RZZB_=F+_A=+—RHZaEH» 72,239

Upon modification of the convertible loan notes on 10 October
2022, interest expense on the convertible loan notes is calculated
at effective interest rate of 8% per annum to the liability

component.

PRSI AR DA
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—F-
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FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(a)

(b)

180

Maijor non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had
non-cash additions to rightof-use assets and lease liabilities
of HK$6,978,000 (2022: HK$7,535,000) and
HK$6,978,000 (2022: HK$7,535,000), respectively, in

respect of lease contracts for buildings.

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

35. REMEFH 2 EBEHR @)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continved)
(b)  (Continved) b) (&)
Interest ~ Convertible Leases
payable  loannotes  Borrowings liabilifies Tofal
BIE: 43
EfFE EFEE & HEEf @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL AL FHT TAT BT
Note 34)  [Note 26)  [Note 16)
(Bi34)  (Wa26) (B 16)
At 1 January 2022 W_ZE-_%—f—H 1,703 72,300 12,036 6,523 92,562
Change from cash flows: RenEEY:
New borrowing HMER - - 19,228 - 19,228
Inferest paid BRFIE 13,118) 13,364 = 489) 6,971
Repayment of principal porfion of EERERG ASED - - - (6,303) (6,303
lease liabilities
13,118 (3,364) 19,228 6,792) 5,954
Other changes: A2
New leases bk = - - 7,535 7,535
Finance costs BERE 2,247 4,566 = 489 7,297
Gain on modification CHL - (2,459 - - (2,459
Covid-19+elated rent concession Covid 191 EBE - - - (160) [160)
200 2107 - 78 1221
At 31 December 2022 and T January 2023 RZZFZZF+Z A =t-8Hk 827 71,043 31,264 7,595 110,729
ZZ-=%-A-H
Change from cash flows: ReRess):
New borrowing MET - - 1,000 - 1,000
Inferest paid BERFE 2.801) (4,338 - [722) (7.861)
Repayment of borrowings BEEF - - (3,542 - (3,542)
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEaE A2 ES - - - (6,634) 6,634)
lease liabilities
2,801 4,338 (2,542 (7,356 (17,037)
Other changes: A2
New leases bk - - - 6,978 6,978
Finance costs BEMK 2,737 5,534 - 722 8,993
27 55 ST 1597
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-F=1-H 763 72,239 28,722 7939 109,663
PESEREERERAT —B-=F% 181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EXEBEE
The Group's objective of managing capital are to safeguard the REEEBEAZENRBREAEEES
Croup's ability fo confinue as a going concern in order fo provide FELE  RIRREMH”D R LA E MR
refurns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to BRATRERZ  THSZEZERE
mainfain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital. BB D E R »
The capital structure of the Group consists of nef debts, comprising AEBZEARBOEEERFR (BEHEE
lease liabilities (Note 16), borrowings (Note 26), and convertible BE(MEI0) - BE (H5E20) Rk
loan notes (Nofe 34), less cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) EREE (Mix34) mBE e RIREEEY (M
and listed equity securities at FVTPL (Note 20), and equity £24)  HBAFEFAEBZ 2 ETRAE
affributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital % (M5E20) RARFHER AEGEER (B
(Note 28) and reserves (Note 30). FERE AR (F15E28) K& (BIEE30)) ©
The directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of % $ EHmAEARRE - ERILRA Z —
this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks CBEEGEREARAREZHEENR
associated with each class of capifal. Based on recommendations ﬁ Eﬁ ZEE REEEBZZH A5E
of management, the Group will balance its overall capital structure 5 3 8K AR B~ BT AR A RO B S 3k
through the payment of dividends, issue of new share as well as BRIREERS ?Hﬁ - N A

new debts or redemption of existing debts.

The net debts fo equity rafio of the Group at the end of reporting RBEERRATEE 2 ERFREHEER
period are as follows: B ENT :

2023 2022

—E-=F —ET_-__F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Debts BE% 108,900 109,902

Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEY (14,421) (16,850)

Financial assets at FVTPL }E’A?{EJJ\?@ Zimﬂﬁ?

— listed equity securities — ETRAE (39,861) (56,170)
Net debts B FRE 54,618 36,882
Equity M2 4,398 138,649
Net debits to equity ratio B FRAHEEABL R 1,241.88% 26.60%
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk
and equity price risk.

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management

policies and practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable fo ifs trade
and other receivables, loan receivables and bank balances
with @ maximum exposure equal fo the carrying amounts of
these instruments. The direcfors has a credit policy in place
and the exposures fo these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take info account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining fo the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of trade
customers and, where appropriate, credit guarantee
insurance cover is purchased. Trade receivables are due
within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 months past due are
requested fo settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the indusiry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the end of reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 45% (2022: 37%) and 80%
(2022: 95%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the Chinese health products business
segments.

G ABTSmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. HBERER
B35 R &
AEBZEBEAAYTRABHEAR 2

& B

mBESRR  FEER - SMNE

[ B DA B2 PR A (B AR B

ZERRRANAEE B EEBRRREE
MZBRIT

(a)

TEEERRIERBERAR —T_=F%H

=EERE

AEEZEERBREZREEEKE
5 8% R A WA - RIRE R R
RITHER  TARBRBMOERZET
AZEHE EEEREZEERR
VERHBEEMAR 22 S EERR

IWEKREZERME BRAAER
BRETEESRZETIGETE
IEERE -  HEFHETRHEER
BED R 2 ERLE IR ZEN
BN LUERETZENEHNEER
RERR BRI ER - AKHE
SHEHERP ZUMBRRETHER
EE X (ER) BEEEERRE
%o RREZFERFBBLREE AR
F=TEATBARE - HREHRE
B=EBBERN 2 BUYERK - A&
BIIARERGHRET JERE—S
ZEEE -AKE-—KRIEREF KR
i o

AEBZEERRFEZSEFER
BT BREEETEREARZ
BHRBRINSTEEERKE  BREE
ER - NRMEPR ARFERER
¥Bor BREBESEREEZE
AU+ AHR(ZEZZF HHZ
T EESZNT(ZE=Z
BAOZNTHR) D ARKAEE &
AEPRAREFPZFIE I AEH
GEATEESE+TRR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

184

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group measures allowance for ECL on frade
receivables at an amount equal fo lifefime ECL.

For trade receivables that are creditimpaired, the Group
assessed lifefime ECL individually. At 31 December 2023,
the Group considered that trade receivables with gross
carrying amount of HK$616,000 (2022: HK$616,000)
were creditimpaired and allowance for ECL was fully

provided as af 31 December 2023.

For trade receivables that are not creditimpaired, the Group
assessed lifetime ECL using provision mafrix. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
sigmﬁconﬂy different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the allowance for ECL based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group's different
customer bases. At 31 December 2023, the Group
considered that trade receivables with gross carrying
amount of HK$5,521,000 (2022: HK$5,804,000) were
not creditimpaired. No allowance for ECL was recognised
on these trade receivables as it is considered to be

insignificant at 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past years. These rafes are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for ECL on trade receivables
during the year is as follows:

37. MBERER &)

B EbR R & (&)
() fEEmEB (&)
FEWE 5885k ()

FRYEEREE ZEXRBEEBHET
REHBZEZ2HNT :

Lifefime ECL
[not credit- Lifetime ECL
impaired)  (creditimpaired) Tofal

AfEAFHAZ AERFHRNZ

REEEFRE EHEEBR

(TEEERE) (FERE) AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAT
At 1 January 2022 RZZE-_—_F—H—H 616 - 616
Transfer to creditimpaired ~ BB EFERE (6106) 616 -
At 31 December 2022, R-TE-_—_F#+-A=+—H"
1 January 2023 and 2 =F-H-HR
31 December 2023 —E-=f+-A=+—H - 616 616
Other receivables H At fE W E

For other receivables, the directors make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical seftlement records, past experience and
supportive forward-looking information. Except for other
receivables with gross carrying amount of HK$ 1,906,000
which is considered to be creditimpaired, the directors
believe that there is no significant increase in credit risk of
the remaining balances of other receivables since initial
recognition and the 12m ECL on these balances is
considered to be insignificant at 31 December 2023 and
2022. For creditimpaired other receivables, accumulated
allowance for ECL of HK$ 1,906,000 was recognised at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

REMEURRENS EFREBEAAE
BEREE  UNELEBRERESFERZ
A BE 14 & R 9 H 4th B W SR I8 2 AT Uk [E]
1 VE S TE BRE B RE AL - BRBR B T
FEEREZEABELS—ANLTES
NTB T B GRIAN - EEHE
F EMBEWSRERTEHRZEER
b B H 9120 W SR LA R B S KB AN -
MZzEEBR_TE_-FR -T2 ==
FH+-—A=+—Bz+=Z@AEHE
EBEBERAMTRE HBEEER
BzEMERRIENS  BHEEE
B R BE—BLTESATAET
BERZZE_=FEK_T=-__F+=H
=t+—H#ER-
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FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

186

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables

The Group's money lending business only provides loan
financing. The Group's customers principally include high
net worth individuals, private companies, or listed
companies infroduced fo the staff and management of the
Group through business/personal networks or are referred
to the Group b\/ its existing or former customers. All the
cusfomers of the Group's money lending business are third
parties independent of the Company and its connected

persons.

The Group has developed a credit policy and procedures
manual for its money lending business. The credit policy and
procedures manual specifies the Group's credit policy
towards its money lending business, the risk management of
the Group’s money lending business, and the credit
procedures for the Group's money lending business, which
include, among others, the loan application, credit
approval, loan closing, and monitoring ongoing credit risk
procedures. All new customers of the Group are subject o
loan application procedures, which include customer due
diligence, reference check for credit and character, and
financial background check. The following internal control
procedures are put in place:

(i)  Credit risk assessment of customers

Prior fo grant of a loan to a customer, the Group
carries out credit risk assessment on the customer,
faking info account, among other things, the following
factors:

(1) background and character of the customer, if
the customer is an individual:

(2)  shareholders’ background, character, and
management capability, if the customer is a
company;

(3] purpose of the loan;

[4)  source of repayment;
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Continuved)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued)

loan receivables (Continued)

(i

(i)

Credit risk assessment of customers (Continued)

(5)  value of collateral and guaranteels), if any; and

(6) the financial strength of the customer,
shareholder(s), and guarantor(s).

For renewal/extension of any granted loans, the
Group carries out an update assessment on the
customer. In addition, the Group also considers the
customer’s repayment behavior in the past.

Mechanism in defermining loan terms

The terms of a loan are normally determined following
arm'’s length negotiation between the Group and the
customer, taking info account the factors set out in (i)
above. Normally, The Group tends to grant loans
under loan fenure of not more than five years, subject
to renewals by mutual consent. The Group would
normally test the customer’s willingness/reluctance to
provide collateral /guarantee to the loan, but will take
a pragmatic approach in order to maintain flexibility
and competitiveness as compared fo banking
institutions who can normally offer better rates to the
customer if they can provide collateral /guarantee.

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)
Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

188

(a)

Loan receivables (Continued)

(i)

Approval process for granting loans, and related

checks and balances

The approval process for granting or renewing loans

is normallly as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

the Group would request the customer to
complete the Lloan Application Form, the Know
Your Customer Form, and the Personal Financial
Information Form:

the Finance Department would seek to verify the
information provided by the customer, collect
supporting documents, and complete the Loan
Recommendation Form on the cusfomer's loan
application and submit fo the responsible
directors;

the responsible directors would review the
recommendation from the Finance Department,
spot check the supporting documents, and
indicate their approval (with or without
modification] or rejection of the loan
application;

the Finance Department will carry out
compliance procedures on all loan applications
approved by the responsible directors. Under
the credit policy and procedures manual, if the
grant of a loan does not constitute a nofifiable
14 of the Llisting
Rules and the customer is not a connected

fransaction under Chapter

person, the grant of the loan would only be
required to be approved by the responsible
directors;
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 37. IBARERE (&)
Financial risk factors (Continved) BERRREZE#E)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (o) f=EREE (&)
Loan receivables (Continued) JEWE K (&)
lii}  Approval process for granting loans, and related i) BHEZRZEMHESN UK
checks and balances (Continued) R & & (&)

(5) if the grant of a loan constitutes a notifiable (5) fWEEEREK _ETARA
and/or connected transaction under Chapter FTHNERETHAZIE
14 or 14A of the listing Rules, the grant of the N2 BT AN 5 HEE
loan would be required to be submitted to the R AREERARR
board of directors for approval; and EEgNftitE &

(6)  the Finance Department would prepare the loan (6)  BA 5 B0 AR B B RS LA
documentation for signing, and the BE URROERERX
announcement if the grant of a loan constitutes AR R/LABEEZS
a nofifiable and/or connected transaction. RmE NS o

(iv)  Monitoring loan repayment (iv) BEfEEEER

The following procedures are in place for monitoring RAFRA THNIZFABEEE

loan repayment: EER:

(1) monthly loan repayment and inferest payment (1) MBHRRTAEEER
schedules are prepared by the Finance EMBNREREER EE
Depariment to enable the responsible directors EEEREABRERRE
fo monitor the fimely payment of each customer. BRRNR-HMEFRE
If a custfomer does not make loan repayment or BRBERHHEEERK
interest payment in accordance with the loan AT F R - B RS AR A% BN B
agreement, the Finance Department would MEEEERE M

promptly report to the responsible directors; and

(2)  the responsible directors conduct the following 2) BEEEETFHEEER
loan monitoring procedures twice a year for ETMR T EREER
each loan, which include: a review of the FroBiE BEEEFEH
patftern of credit usage, contact with the B EEPHK FE
customer, review of periodic financial BF 2 BT BHRE N
statements/position of the customer, and AR BRI B RN H
monitor compliance with existing covenants or il BRI 2 ETIER

other conditions of the loan.

The conducting of semi-annual loan monitoring not ETHEEEREETEEZR
only enables the responsible directors to identify BEERERNENEMEZE
problematic loans on a timely basis, but also serves o WEARBBERE TS R
as an input for loan classification in calculating HRWEREHEEFRE &
allowance for ECL on loan receivables for financial B AERERD B2 BARIE -

reporting purposes.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

190

Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

(v)

Actions for recovering delinquent loans

The actions taken for recovering de|mquem loans

would normally include the following:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

examine and evaluate the delinquent loan
situation;

discuss with the customer of the delinquent loan;

discuss infernally to formulate an action plan of
recovery; and

recovery strafegy can involve a wide range of
actions, which includes the revising of the
repayment terms, adding of collaterals/
guarantees, reaching of settlement, the
commencement of legal actions against the
customer, and/or enforcement on collaterals/
guarantees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

The directors consider that the above internal control
procedures significantly reduce the Group's credit risk.

The board of directors strives to ensure that the credit policy
and procedures manual is appropriate to the markef need
and the procedures as set ouf in the manual are strictly
followed and carried out by the staff. The board of directors
has appointed APAC Compliance Consultancy and Internal
Control Services limited, an independent firm, to conduct
independent review on adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and infernal confrol systems of the Group's
money lending business.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers a
loan receivable as underperforming which indicates that
there is a significant increase in credit risk if (i) the
repayment of principal and/or inferest has been overdue for
more than one month, and (ii) the principal, accrued
interest, and/or future inferest of the loan may not be fully
secured by the fair value of the collateral at its prevailing
market price. The Group considers a loan receivable as
non-performing which indicates that the loan receivable
becomes credit impaired if (i) the repayment of principal
and/or interest has been overdue for more than three
months, and [ii) the collection of principal and/or interest in
full is improbable after taking into account the fair values of
the collateral at prevailing market price.

The Group applies the general approach, which is often
referred to “three-stage model”, under HKFRS @, in which
ECL of loan receivable are determined based on (i) the
changes in credit quality of the loan receivable since initial
recognition, and [ii] the estimated expectation of an
economic loss of the loan receivable under consideration.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

192

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

Under the general approach, there are two measurement
bases for allowance for ECL:

(i) 12-months ECL, which are the ECL that result from

default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date and are calculated as the
allowance for ECL on a loan receivable weighted by
the probability of default accumulated over the 12

months after the reporting date.

li)  lifetime ECL, which are the ECL that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
loan receivable and are calculated as the allowance
for ECL on a loan receivable weighted by the
probability of default accumulated over the entire life
of the loan receivable.

The allowance for ECL on loan receivables are prepared
with the help of independent valuer fo identify the exposure
of default which equals the sum of the principal and the
accrued/unpaid interest; credit rafing of the borrower; a
loss given default rate ("LGD") based on the credit rafing
and the time horizon; a probability of default of each loan;
a K factor based on the current forward-looking economic
scenario; and a discount rate to the date of valuation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

The allowance of ECL is arrived by:

Exposure at Default x LGD x Probability of Default x K Facfor
x Discount Factor

Under HKFRS 9, the allowance for ECL of the Group's loan

receivables are recognised in the following three sfages:

li)  Stage 1 (Performing) includes loan receivables that
have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk af the
reporting date. For these loan receivables, 12-month
ECL are recognised.

li)  Stage 2 (Underperforming) includes loan receivables
that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition (unless they have low credit risk at
the reporting date) but that do not have objective
evidence of impairment. For these loan receivables,
lifetime ECL are recognised.

lii}  Stage 3 [Non-performing) includes loan receivables
that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date. For these loan receivables, lifetime
ECL are recognised.

To ensure the adequacy of allowance for ECL on loan
receivables, the Group engaged APAC Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers, to conduct a valuation on the allowance for ECL on
loan receivables recognised for each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 37. MERAMER &)
Financial risk factors (Continved) B REEEE)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (o) fEEREE (&)
Loan receivables (Continued) JEWE X (42)
The following table provides information about the Group's TREHEBLIEENR_T_=FK
exposure fo credit risk and allowance for ECL on loan 2 —F+ZHA=+—RHZEER
receivables at 31 December 2023 and 2022: S ME W E R 2 EHEEEE
Bz B
2023 —E_=F
Gross  Accumulated Net
carrying allowance carrying
ECL rate amount for ECL amounts
FEHREE FEHEEEE

BER REAE ZRIRE AR R E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit quality NEEEEEDTE

classification FET TET FET
Performing &4 3% 17,592 (497) 17,095
Non-performing TR 100% 293,721 (293,721) -
311,313 (294,218) 17,095
2022

—E-—F
Gross  Accumulated Net
carrying allowance carrying
ECL rate amount for ECL amounts

FEHEE FEHEEEE

BiEx FREfRE ZRFEB FRmEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Infernal credit quality NEEEEZDHE

classification FET FET FHT
Performing B4 4% 117,544 (5,004) 112,540
Under-performing x 35% 32,850 (11,339 21,511
Non-performing TR 100% 170,406 (170,400 -

320,800 (186,749) 134,051
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE
37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 37. BERER &)
Financial risk factors (Continved) BERRREZE#E)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (o) f=EREE (&)
Loan receivables (Continued) JEWE K (&)
Movements in gross balance of loan receivables: B E R B REEE)
Year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_Z_=%+-A=+—HLEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—RE EEE E=MEE et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZT_=%F
= H=H 117,544 32,850 170,406 320,800
Increase/(decrease) U E X
in loan receivables #n,/Crd) 4,226 - (13,713) (9,487)
Transfer to Stage 3 EREE=[ER (104,178) (32,850) 137,028 =
At 31 December 2023 R-ETE =%
+=—HA=+—H 17,592 = 293,721 311,313
Year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZE-__F+_HA=1+—HILFE
Stage Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—FEER FREER FoPEER BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAET FAT
At 1 January 2022 RZZTE_—
—H—H 131,620 S 168,917 300,537
Increase in loan receivables JE U & FX1& hn 16,274 2,500 1,489 20,263
Transfer to Stage 2 WIZEE R (30,350) 30,350 - -
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-—F
+-—A=+—H 117,544 32,850 170,406 320,800
PESEREERERAT —B-=F% 195
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 37. IBAREE (&)
Financial risk factors (Continved) B REEEE)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) o) EEmEE (&)
loan receivables (Continued) FEWE % (&)
Movements in allowance for ECL on loan receivables: BKRER HHREEERBEZD)

Year ended 31 December 2023
BE-ZE_=F+-A=+—HILLFE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—EER ERER E=MEE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET FHET FHET
1 January 2023 RZBE_=4F
—H—H 5,004 11,339 170,406 186,749
Transfer to Stage 3 HREE =R (4,788) (11,339) 16,127 -
Allowance for ERREHEE
ECL recognised B R R 281 — 107,188 107,469
At 31 December 2023 RZZTEZ=%F
+=—A=+—8H 497 - 293,721 294,218
Year ended 31 December 2022
HEZZT-—_F+-A=+—HIEFE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—EER F[EER F[EER Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
1 January 2022 MZT__F
—H—H 6,923 = 155,042 161,965
Transfer to Stage 2 WREE _ER (1,972 1,672 - -
Allowance for BERERESEE
ECL recognised s 53 9,367 15,364 24,784
At 31 December 2022 A
+=—A=+—H 5,004 11,339 170,406 186,749
At 31 December 2023, the amounts of loan receivables RZEBEZ=F+=ZA=+—H &K
(before accumulated allowance for ECL) from the largest EPRARERP Z RWEFE RNk
customer and the five largest customers in aggregate EHEEBIERF;E® aXIRA
amounted to HK$67,865,000 (2022: HK$67,865,000) ANFEtENTABRETAEL(ZE ==
and HK$249,897,000 (2022: HK$253,571,000], F:RFTEENTAERETELT) K
respectively. They accounted for 22% (2022: 21%) and —REFABNATASETERL(CZE
80% (2022: 79%) respectively of the loan receivables ——F: - _EBAfF=ZzEhRttE—T
(before accumulated allowance for ECL) as at 31 December BL) RZTE-_=ZF+-_A=+—

2023.

HEo b E R CGRINRTEHE
BEEERFAEE cBE 2T (=
T oF AR ZT ) REAZ
NT(ZBE_—F:FHoHztt+N) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 37. IBARERE (&)
Financial risk factors (Continved) B REREE (&)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (o) fEEREE (&)
Loan receivables (Continued) JEWE L ()
Maijor terms of the outstanding loans as at 31 December RZB_=FR-ZZF-__F+=H
2023 and 2022 are as follows: =+—H Zﬂi BEER 2 EEBGFRNA
T
Loan and Loan and
inferest inferest
recelvobles Allowance for receivables
[before ECL affer
accumulated  Accumulated reversed/ accumulated
dllowance for  allowance for ~ (recognised) for  allowance for Collateral
ECL) as ot ECLasat  the year ended ECL) as ot and/or
31 December 1 Jonua 31 December 31 December Interest rate guarantee
202 2023 2023 per annum obtained  Maturing on Notes
HE-E-=%
R=B=zf tZA=+-B M=B==f
tZA=t-H 52 t=A=1-H
ZEWERE RWZBZZF B8E/ 2EREHR
FE(RME  -A-Az (BER) FS (@?‘DF%
RAEEER BHEEEE REGEEE RACEER ERBERR }
iR ZitRE B B ) ENE k/3fER HHA (i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR TR TR

Stage 1 F-ER
Cuslomer L EFL 6,289 (88) (19) 6,182 13% No 17 March 2024
& —Z-RME=At+AR
Customer N ZPN 2,092 (43) 6 2,055 8% No 11 Murch 2027
& “E-t#=At-H
Customer O £FO - (85) 85 - 8% No 10 August 2023
& —Z-=F)\AtH
Cusiomer P EPP 9,211 - (353) 8,858 Hong Kong No 21 Murch 2024
Prime Rote +3% & “EB-RE=A-t-H
ﬂ £
17,592 (216) (281) 17,095
Stage 3 £ZRB
Cusiomer A EPA 60,828 (60,828) - - 8% No 30 July 2022 I
§ _ER__#tA-1R
Customer £ ZFE 37,713 (41,713) 4,000 - 13% Yes 7 November 2022 2
7 “B-_#1-A+A
Cusfomer | ER 67,865 (67,865) - - 12% Yes 3 October 2020 3
® ZE-ZETA=H
Cusiomer J ZP 25,000 3,577) (21,423) - 8% No 9 February 2023 4
& —E_-F_AhA
Cusiomer G EFG 9,072 (221) 8,831) - 10% No 11 May 2023 5
A B =FRAT-H
Cusiomer F EPF 30914 (11,339) (19,975) - 12% No 15 August 2023 6
& —B_=f)\AT1IR
Cusfomer K zZRK 9752 (169) 9,583 - 8% No 3 June 2023 7
& —T-=fxA=H
Customer M EEM 52,577 (821) (51,75¢) - 9% No 5 December 2023 8
& ZZCZET-REA
293,721 (186,533) (107,188) -
311,313 (186,749) (107,469) 17,095
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

198

Loan receivables (Continued)

Nofe:

(1)

Customer A with outstanding principal amount of HK$60
million has failed fo pay the accrued interests on the loan
since January 2022. The Group has been engaged in
ongoing negotiation with him on repayment arrangements
with the view to entering into a binding seftlement
agreement. In March 2023, the Group instructed ifs legal
adviser to send a demand lefter to him demanding his
immediate setilement. In July 2023, the Group received a
reply from him proposing fo repay the outstanding principal
and the accrued interest of the loan by insfallments. Since
December 2023 up to now, the Group had been
negotiating the terms of the settlement proposal with
Customer A, but has yet to finalise the terms.
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- For the year end

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continuved)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued)

loan receivables (Continued)

Note: (Continved)

(2)

Customer E with outstanding principal amount of HK$35
million has failed fo seftle outstanding interest for more than a
year. Customer E has negotiated seftlement plan with the
Group including the giving of a corporate guarantee
provided by a PRC company fo secure the borrower's loan
obligations in January 2022. The Group has commenced
arbifration against the guarantor in the PRC in November
2022. Under the guidance of the arbitration court, a
mediation agreement was signed on in May 2023. In
August 2023, Customer E paid HK$4 million fo the Group
to setile part of the unpaid interest on the loan. On 30
November 2023, the Group commenced legal proceedings
against Customer E in Hong Kong. Customer E has put her
residential property in Hong Kong on the market for sale,
and has made arrangements to enable the Group to share
the disposal proceeds with the mortgage loan lender.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

200

Loan receivables (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(3)

(4)

(3]

In October 2020, Customer | failed to repay a loan with
outstanding principal amounts of HK$64 million together
with the accrued interest thereon according to the loan
agreement. The loan was guaranteed by a PRC company
(the “PRC Guarantor’) and a BVI company, and the Group
obtained a charge over the shares of a Hong Kong
company which indirectly held the PRC Guarantor. The
Group has commenced legal proceedings against Customer
| and the guarantors fo recover the outstanding principal and
interests thereon. The first court hearing was held on 12 May
2022 and the court handed down the judgment in favour of
the Group on 31 May 2022. On 7 July 2022, Customer |
lodged an appeal against the judgment. The appeal was
withdrawn by Customer | on 19 September 2023. The
judgement was effective on 7 January 2024. The Group
was recently approached by an independent third party
purchaser proposing fo acquire the loan receivable due from
Cusfomer | and the accrued and unpaid inferest thereon by
fransferring the ownership of a number of properties located
in Guangzhou, Mainland Ching, to the Group. The Group
is currently discussing the terms and conditions of such
proposal with the purchaser.

Customer ] failed to setile the outstanding principal and
accrued interest in February 2023. The Group has been
engaged in ongoing negotfiation with Customer J. Customer ]
has paid HK$2.4 million in March 2023 and HK$5 million
in August 2023. Since the loan receivable was overdue for
over 90 days, the loan was transferred from Stage 1
(Performing) to Stage 3 (Non-performing). The Group is
frying fo negotiate a setlement arrangement with Customer J.

Customer G failed to seffle the outstanding principal and
accrued inferest in May 2023. Since the loan receivable
was overdue for over 90 days, the loan was transferred from
Stage 1 [Performing) to Stage 3 (Non-performing). The
Group has been in negotiation with Customer G on the
repayment of the loan receivables with a view to entering
info a binding sefflement agreement. In August 2023,
Customer G repaid HK$3 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 ﬁ§_§:_$+ A=+— ElJJ:iJ_\_

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)
Financial risk factors (Continved)
Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

Note: (Continved)

Customer F failed to settle the outstanding principal and
accrued inferest since August 2023. Since the loan
receivable was overdue for over 90 days, the loan was

transferred from Stage 2 (Under-performing] to Stage 3 (Non-

performing). The Group has been in negotiation with
Customer F on the repayment of the loan receivables with a
view fo entering info a binding sefflement agreement. In
November 2023, Customer F repaid HK$ 1.7 million.

Customer K failed to seftle the outstanding principal and
accrued interest since June 2023. Since the loan receivable
was overdue for over 90 days, the loan was transferred from
Stage 1 (Performing) to Stage 3 [Non-performing). The
Group has been in negotiation with Customer K on the
repayment of the loan receivables with a view to entering
info a binding setflement agreement. In December 2023,
Customer K repaid HK$0.2 million.

Customer M failed to seftle the outstanding principal and
accrued interest in December 2023. The loan receivable
was transferred from Stage 1 (Performing) fo Stage 3 (Non-
performing). The Group has been in negotiation with
Customer M on the repayment of the loan receivables with a
view fo entering into a binding sefflement agreement.

As at 31 December 2023, gross carrying amount and
accumulated ECL of loan receivables classified as Stage 3
(Non-performing) (included default interest) amounted to
approximately HK$335,731,000 (2022:
HK$193,570,000) and HK$335,731,000 (2022:
HK$193,570,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 37. MBRAMER &)
Financial risk factors (Continved) B EREEE)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (o) EEERR(E)

Loan receivables (Continued) JEMWE (&)
loan and loan and
inferest interest
receivables Allowance for receivables
(before £CL (offer
accumulated Accumuloted reversed/ accumulated
dlowancefor ~ allowance for  [recognised)for  allowance for Collateral
ECl) s af EClasat  the year ended ECl) as o ond/or
31 December I Jonuary 31 December 31 December Inferest rate quarantee
2022 2022 2022 2022 per annum oblained  Maturing on Notes
RZE-—fF BR-F--F pZ%-z
T=A=1=H t=A=t-H +ZA=1-H

ZERERE  R-T--fF HEEZ  ZRMEHR
ME(GRIOR  —A-Hz B&D/ 80k
BHEERR RAGEEE (CEIEYN RHEEER ERGERR

Zit k) ZitRE EPERE ZEER) Ef= R/giER 4R fifs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET
Stage | £-k8
Customer | %F| 32216 14,155) 578 28,639 8% No 9 February 2023
& ZFC=ECANA
Customer K REK 10,261 17) (162) 10,092 8% No 3June 2023
f ZEZ=FXA=A
Customer L ZEL 5,575 6) 82) 5,487 12% No 17 March 2023
& “EZEZAttH
Customer M EPM 50,315 [469) (352) 49,494 9% No 5 December 2023
& ZE-=E+ZAEA
Customer G EFG 11,386 (314) 93 11,165 10% No 11 May 2023
& —E-=-fRfR+-H
Customer N ZFEN 2,634 = 43) 2,591 8% No l 1 March 2027
& ZZ-tE=ft-H
Customer O ZFO 5157 - (89) 5,072 8% No 10 August 2023
& ZEZ=FNATH
117 544 4,951) (53) 112,540
Stage 2 ERR
Customer F ZPF 32,850 (1972) 9.367) 21,511 12% No 15 August 2023
& —Z_Zf¥)\At1R
Stage 3 £ZRB
Customer A ZFA 60,828 (60,828) - - 8% No 30 July 2022 |
& ZEZZEtAZTH
Customer £ ZPE 41713 26,349 (15,364 - 13% Yes 7 November 2022 2
B ZB_ZET-ALR
Customer | ZF| 67,865 (67,865) - - 12% Yes 3 October 2020 3
® ZZZESAZH
170,406 (155,042) (15,364) -
320,800 (161,965) (24,784) 134,051
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Bank balances

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are high-
credit-quality banks and 12m ECL on bank balances is
considered to be insignificant, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
shortterm investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed
cerfain predetermined levels of authority. The Group
maintains availability of funding through an adequate
amount of available credit facilities. The direcfors aim fo
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturifies af the end of reporting period of the Group's non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using confractual rafes) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, other
loan with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
counterparty choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivafive financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEUMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(b)

204

Liquidity risk (Continued)

37. BHEABEE @)

PSR B B & ()
(o) HEIEZERE ()

Total Within ~ More than ~ More than
Weighted confractual Tyear  1Tyearbut 2 years but
average Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than
inferest rate amount  cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
BRKRFH

i RERE -fr  BBE-F BEWF
FHME REE A8 HEEX BOIRWE BOREF
2023 ZBC=ZF %  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
% TER THET TR TR TR

Trade and other payables and & £ 8R 5 £ o fE 1
accrued charges HENREFER 33,427 33,427 33,427 = =
lease liabilifies HEaE 7,939 8,503 6,262 2,077 164
Borrowings BE 10 28,722 28,722 28,722 - -
Convertible loan notes HEREREE 8 72,239 76,638 76,638 = =
142,327 147,290 145,049 2,077 164
Tofal More than ~ More than
Weighted contractual Within 1 year but 2 years
average Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than  but less than
interest rafe amount  cashflow  on demand 2 years 5 years
ik BRATE —fR  BE-F BERF
T REE HEeR8EE IEEX EIRWE BIRDF
2022 “S-CF % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAT TET TAT TAT TAT

Trade and other payables and  JEH & 5 8 5 H o fE
accrued charges FEA LB ER - 35,965 35,065 35,065 - -
lease liabilities HERE 9 7,595 8,172 5,200 2,650 322
Borrowings EE 10 31,264 31,264 31,264 - -
Convertible loan notes RREZER 8 71,043 80,976 4,338 76,638 -
145,867 156,377 76,767 79,288 322
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Other loan with a repayable on demand clause is included
in the “within 1 vear or on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 31 December 2023, the aggregafe
undiscounted cash flows of other loan amounted to
HK$ 14,109,000 (2022: HK$18,706,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the counterparty will exercise
its discretionary rights to demand immediafe repayment. The
directors believe that other loan will be repaid after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dafes sef out in the loan agreement, defails of
which are sef out in the table below:

Maturity analysis — Borrowing with a repayable on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

G ABTSmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. MBERER &)

B EbR R & (&)
(b) HEBEZmE (E)

BEREREERRNEMERGA
FBH A ST [ —F Rk EE K]
NeRZ-ZEBE-_=ZF+_A=+—8H -
HMEROMATRBRSREA LA
—THOE—F+EZATAEL(ZZ
T —FNANBEETEZTATHE
TL) o REEBAEENTBEAMR - E
ERBEFHBITEERISEE KA
BERMAREETK - BEERA H
HERERRE B RBIEE R ZEH
FIMBEEER A BEE - FBHIR
& :

MBI — REREERXBSA
BERERGEFOEE

Tofal More than Mo than

contractual Within -~ 1 year but 2 years

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than  but less than

Interest rate amount  cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years

BRARHR -fr  BB-F BEmEF

Gilk:S RHE RERBAE JEER BIRWE BIREE

2023 b g2 %  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

% TET TR TR TR TR

Other loan HpER 10 13,614 14,109 14,109 = =

Tofal More than  More than

contraciual Within 1 year but 2 years

Camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than ~ but less than

Interest rate amount  cashflow  on demand 2 years 5 years

ANARR —FR  BE-F BERF

GRS REE HEREEE IEEX ELRMF BIRDF

2022 B S 2 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

% TET FEL FET TET FET

Other loan HEER 10 15,792 18,706 1,477 17,229 -
FESERFERERAT —T-ZFR 205
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(c)

206

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to lease liabilities, fixed-rate borrowings and liability
component of convertible loan notes. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow inferest rafe risk in relation fo variable
rates bank balances and borrowing. The Group's cash flow
interest rate risk is concentrated on fluctuation of Hong Kong
Prime Rate arising from its HK$ denominated borrowing.

The Group currently does not have an inferest rate hedging
policy. It manages its interest rafe risk by closely monitoring
the interest rate movements and where considered
appropriate using financial instruments to hedge the interest
rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensifivity analyses below have been defermined based
on the exposure fo interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease in variablerate borrowing represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the management considers that the
exposure of cash flow inferest rate risk arising from variable-
rate bank balances is insignificant.

At 31 December 2023, if inferest rafes of the borrowing
had been 50 basis points higher/lower, with all other
variables remain constant, the Group's loss and fotal
comprehensive expense for the year ended 31 December
2023 would have increased/decreased by HK$57,000
(2022 : HK$66,000) .
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37. MBERER &)
MEEBEEE)

(c)

FE @

AEEAAERBAHEERE TG
ENTHMEERERRERI 22T
BENMERERE  AEEITFAAERRBRR
BREXRTEHRREEZRSRNEK
> REBORSRANEEARER
SHENETHEZEEMELEZE
BREBMNERE -

AL B H AW EH RERHER - A%
BB TER SR T AR KRR
fRORE IR AR R AR -

BHE DT

THIBURED T A RIFRE HIR 2 F
RERTETE - 20T RBRERS B
AARFAZEMITEERBEFEA S
REMMAER - FBNREEE MK
BMAOSOBMERMKREEBHN R 2
BEAEZEL 2 RITERTE
RESREI T RAREEER
REFPNERABZRITEBAESE
ZBE R ERR 2 BB BT RE -

RZZFE-_=F+=-A=+—8 " i
BRR EFTRRSOMES  FEHE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(d)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
majority of the transactions being seftled in HK$, United
States dollars (“USD") and Renminbi ("RMB”). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabiliies, which are denominated in
a currency that is not the functional currency of the Group.

The following table defails the Group's exposure at the end
of reporting period to currency risk arising from forecast
fransactions or recognised assefs or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
fo which they relate:

37. MBERER &)

MEERRREE (&)
(d) SMEERR

AEEREERTEZE  KPOXR
HRET ETL(ET)) RARE
TAR®]) &5 - SMER KB RK
BERS CDHEREERAE HIA
WHAEEDEEE 2 BHHE -

TRAVNARERHEHBARK BB
RBHAEEERZINGEEEIAINZ
E¥IEZEHAREERRBEZIMNE
B -

2023 2022

—E-=E —E-_F
RMB Us$ RMB US$
N EY ARE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET FAT
Assets G - - Q2 5
Liabilifies ELE - - (330) -
_ = (238) 5

The Company is mainly exposed fo the foreign exchange
risk of RMB against HK$. Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the
Company does not expect any significant movement in
HK$/USD exchange rate and this is excluded from the
sensifivity analysis below. Management will monitor foreign
exchange exposure to mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The Company currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of assefs and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency. The Company will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

TEEERRIERBERAR —T_=F%H

ARBEEAZARE BT ZIMNE
R o R ITEERTHE - N
EEETL ETEXTEHEERMEKR
BE WA TBRETXZHERED
1 o B3R B 7 BE 5% O B L B LA R SN
BEE LR o

ARE BRI\ EINEEERBE
ZINEEHBER o R AR B
HOMNER R - R E TF EEE E L
ERIMER R o
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(d)

208

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Croup's loss for the year in response fo reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rafes to which the Group
has significant exposure af the end of reporting period.

37. HEREBER (#)
HEEREEE#)
(d) SEmB ()

TRERAEB 2 AFEEBBERERN
Elb”\ﬂﬁiﬂﬁifiﬁékﬂ ZQI\EE
REEA B S| B MO

2023 2022

—E-=F T
Increase/ Increase/ Increase,/ Increase,/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in loss for in foreign in loss
exchange rates the year  exchange rafes for the year
SMEE BE & TEEEBER SN [ 2 REREE
EF (TR #MmACRD)  EFACTE)  #in Cfd)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THIT
RMB AR 5% - 5% 12
(5%) - (5%) (12)

The sensitivity analysis has been defermined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
end of reporting period and had been applied to each of
the group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary
items in existence at that date, and that all other variables,

remain constant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed fo equity price risk arising from listed
equity securities in Hong Kong classified as financial assets
at FVTPL.

The Group manages its equity price risk by regularly
moniforing equity porifolio fo address any portfolio issues
prompily and spreading price risk exposure by investing a
number of listed equity securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk af the reporting date. As at 31
December 2023, if the prices of the listed equity securities
in Hong Kong with quoted market price held by the Group
had been 15% (2022: 15%) higher/lower, with all other
variables remain constant, the Group's loss for the year
would have decreased/increased by HK$5,979,000
[2022: HK$8,426,000).

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are

37. MBERER &)

MERBEE (&)
le)] MRAEXREEE

AEEBEAE ZBRAERRREDE
REAFEFABSECEREEZE
BLTBRANESAESL

AEEZBRTEHAERBRAES BN
RETMAEEHE  LEEREZHE
EHBEARFDBERER  BAE
BHBRAERRR -

BERE D TEBIERE B H 2 RAE
KEBMEE R-_ZE-_=F+_4
=+—8 WAKEFMFEATMS®R
BZBEBLTMRABHFZEE LR T
KEA 2 THE(ZEZZF:BH 2
TH) EABEMWEEHEFTIEY
BRT @ AEBZ FREEBRLD,
MEEALTEEATEL(ZZE=_=
F: \AE+-BATHET) -

38. %ﬁﬁﬂ%‘]ﬁZﬁEﬂﬁE&ﬁEﬂﬁﬁ
3

AEER_ZE_=FEK T -_—_F+=A
Tt HERZEMEEREMBEZE

categorised as follows: HEERDEMT
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assefs at amortised cost REHER AT E 2 SR EE
[including cash and cash equivalents) (BREBESMBESEEY) 41,917 162,419
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVEFABEZEREE 40,420 57,313
82,337 219,732
Financial liabilities sREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DEEKATECeREE 142,327 145,867
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

38. ZERBs2EMEERERMEARE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continved) BE#)
Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are AEERATFEREMTFEZEMT
measured at fair value on a recurring basis AEQ¥E
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TREIARFEIRZERTAZRT
carried af fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: BEERZ M :
level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F—H: HRABEXBERERMSF 2
identical assets or liabilities; WE CREHR)
level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within F_H: BRE-—LMBEREINKEESK
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, g ErEE BER) B (B
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. REER) BRAEZEE &
derived from prices); and
level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on FE=R: REENBEZTAEEMHH
observable market dafa (unobservable inputs). B (A REUE) 2 8 -
2023
—EB-=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R -t 113 E= BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TExT FET FE T
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAFEEFABERZZ
THREE
— listed equity securities — FTARAZE S 39,861 - - 39,861
— unlisted equity securities — JELTRAE 5 - - 559 559
39,861 - 559 40,420
2022
—E-—
level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
F—R =Bl FE=R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT TAT AT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFAERZ
TREE
— listed equity securities — PR AES 56,170 - - 56,170
— unlisted equity securifies — FELHRAESH - - 1,143 1,143
56,170 - 1,143 57,313

210 China Healthwise Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023



38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continved)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

In esfimating the fair value of financial instruments, the Group uses
market observable dafa to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Group work closely
with the independent qualified valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs.

Fair values of listed equity securities have been determined by
reference fo their quoted market closing prices at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value of unlisted equity securities is defermined based on
valuation using asset-based approach. Fair value of individual
business assets less liabilities of the investment company was
considered to arrive the fair value of the Group's equity inferests in
the investee company. The significant input is the net asset value
of the investee company. The net assef value is positively
correlated fo the fair value measurement of the unlisted equity
securifies.

The following table presents the changes in fair value of financial
assefs which are classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

G ABTSmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H#E-ZT_=F+ _A=+—HILFE

38. ZERBs2ERMEERERAR

ME @)

AEBEAFELENTEZERT
AEQ¥E#E)

EfFERTAZATER  AREGEE
ERAMIZABRREE - HEEZMEE R
BB AEEEZRBUAERMGEME
TEE - AEEEBYAERMGEMNES
BIF UWREEEE ZHERTRBAE -

EABRABS 2 AFELIZ2EERREH
REr U T EREE

FLETRAZBZZAFEDIAEERER
ZHEEEE - Erf RRE QB Z R
BEERABZAFERSHAKRERE
RERAIREZAVFE - BREAEBERK
RERRIZEEFE BEFERIFELD
BAE S Z N FEFEKIEL

TR2HSEAATERRE=R2 SR
AEATED

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2022 RZEBE-_—_F—HF—H 2,400

Fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZEMEEZ AFEEE (1,257)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZE-_—F+-_A=+—8BXK

—E-=4—AF—H 1,143

Fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL BAVEF AR eMEE 2 AT EERE (584)

At 31 December 2023 RZZBE-_=F+=-A=+—H 559

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was
no transfer between Level 1 and 2, or transfer into or out of Level

3.

BHE-_Z =k _=F+=H
=+ —HIFE - THEEEF—REE_H
ZEcEE NN FEE ANERE =R
1B °
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39.

212

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continved)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at amortised cost were not materially different from their
fair values at 31 December 2023 and 2022, except for the
convertible loan notes, which had a carrying amount and fair
value of HK$72,239,000 (2022: HK$71,043,000) and
HK$70,700,000 (2022: HK$68,694,000) at 31 December
2023 respectively.

The fair value measurement of the convertible loan notes was
classified under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value
of the convertible loan notes was determined based on a
discounted cash flow and binomial option price model.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2024.
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